WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Monday, May 10, 2021
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215
West Palm Beach, Florida 33409
NOMINATION SESSION

A NOMINATION SESSION WILL CONVENE AT 5:30 P.M. TO NOMINATE
COMMISSIONERS FOR SEAT 1, SEAT 2, SEAT 3, SEAT 7. THE REGULAR MEETING
WILL RESUME AFTER THE NOMINATION SESSION.

NOTE: Agenda Summary (Pages3-8)
Staff Report (Pages 9-14)

l. CALLTO ORDER/ROLL CALL
Il. AGENDA APPROVAL
1. Additions, Deletions, Substitutions to Agenda
2. Adoption of Agenda
Il. ADOPTION OF W/BH CRA MINUTES (Pages 15-18)
IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS
V. DISCLOSURES
VL. CONSENT AGENDA
Vil. REGULAR AGENDA
1. Development Order Amendment for Broward Motorsports of Palm
Beach: 2300 Okeechobee Blvd (Pages 19-53)
2. 21-01 Round of ULDC Amendments (Pages 54-67)
VIll. REPORTS
A. Staff Reports
Correspondence (Pages 68-69)
B. Attorney’s Report
C. Committee Reports and Board Comments
Administrative/Finance —
Capital Improvements — Chair, Mr. Daniels

1

2.

3. Land Use -

4. Real Estate — Chair, Mr. Kirby



5. Marketing -
6. Community Affairs —
7. Special Events — Chair, Ms. Rufty

IX. ADJOURNMENT

ANY PERSON MAKING IMPERTINENT OR SLANDEROUS REMARKS OR WHO
BECOMES BOISTEROUS WHILE ADDRESSING THE BOARD WILL BE BARRED FROM
FURTHER AUDIENCE BEFORE THE BOARD BY THE PRESIDING OFFICER, UNLESS
PERMISSION TO CONTINUE OR AGAIN ADDRESS THE BOARD AS GRANTED BY A
MAJORITY VOTE OF THE BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT.

IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THIS BOARD WITH
RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, HE WILL NEED A
RECORD OF THE PROCEEDING, AND FOR SUCH PURPOSE HE MAY NEED TO
ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS 1S MADE, WHICH
RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS
TO BE BASED.

ON JUNE 7, 1994, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS APPROVED
RESOLUTION NO. 94-693, KNOWN AS THE CODE OF ETHICS. UNDER SECTION 11,
IT IS REQUIRED THAT PAID AND UNPAID LOBBYISTS REGISTER. PLEASE REFER
TO SECTONS 11.01 AND 11.02 IN THE CODE OF ETHICS FOR REGISTRATION
SPECIFICS. FOR YOUR USE, REGISTRATION FORMS ARE AVAILABLE FROM THE
CRA’S ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT.



VESTGATEBELVEDERE HOMES

SN RS Skt

AGENDA ITEMS
Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Board Meeting
May 10, 2021

REGULAR AGENDA

1. Development Order Amendment for Broward Motorsports of Palm Beach: 2300
Okeechobee Bivd.

A. Background and Summary: The subject site is located on the southwest corner of
Okeechobee Bivd. and Congress Ave. Broward Motorsports of Palm Beach, formerly
known as Lexus of Palm Beach, is 3.87 acres in total and consists of a 24,805 sf., one
and two story building. The site is approved for and operates a Vehicle Sales and
Rental, Light as the principal use, however, some repair and maintenance services are
also provided on site. The approval also includes a phased plan to allow a one story
45,496 sf. inventory storage structure. The subject application requests the addition of
two new vehicle showroom areas on the east (at 2,949 sf.) and west (at 2,231 sf.) sides
of the building totaling 5,180 sf. The site was originally approved in 1987 as a Special
Exception to allow vehicles sales and rental as well as repairs via BCC Res #R-87-
1099. The site was expanded, improved and operated this way for 20 years before
Broward Motorsports acquired the site, and processed amendments to the site plan and
development order to allow the use to operate specific to the sale and rental of
recreation vehicles. #R-2003-939, and most recently #R-2009-1046 further clarified, via
conditions of approval, the types of and number of vehicles that could be sold, rented or
leased, and cited repairs and service as an accessory use.

The entire site is within the UG (Urban General) Sub-area of the WCRAOQ, and is zoned
CG (Commercial General) with a Future Land Use designation (FLU) of CH/8
{commercial high with an underlying residential land use of 8 du's/acre). The site is in
the URA (Urban Redevelopment Area), the U/S (Urban/Suburban) Tier, and in the
Woestgate CCRT area. There are vehicle sales & rental uses to the north across
Okeechobee Blvd. in the City of West Palm Beach. To the west, is a small auto repair
shop, Mr. Mack’s [sland Grill restaurant, as well as residential (zoned CG and RH with a

Page | 1
WCRA Board Meeting
May 10. 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 e West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

3



“]V,‘ nrn

nnn

WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES

SUSSEIRI RROR e bRy

CH/8 and CL/8 FLU), to the south, multifamily and commercial (zoned CG and RH with
a CH/8 and CL/8 FLU), and to the east is a Chevron Gas Station and an adult
entertainment business (Monroe’s) zoned CG with a CH/8 FLU.

Both Vehicle Sales and Rental, Light and Repair and Maintenance, Light, are Class A
conditional uses requiring BCC approval, and continue to be permitted in the UG Sub-
area. The use is vested. The expansion exceeds the threshold to allow the additional
square footage by administrative approval, and the WCRAO provides that all projects
requiring Development Order Amendment approval by the BCC must be reviewed and
provided a recommendation by the CRA.

The application requests a Development Order Amendment to amend the site plan, last
approved via #R-2009-1046, to add 5,180 sf. of new vehicle showroom and reconfigure
the site plan to remove the previously approved Phase 2 inventory storage building from
the overall square footage; parking spaces will now be shown at this location, and to
make minor adjustments to the site parking areas and circulation o accommodate new
vehicle showroom space. The application is necessary {o bring the site into compliance.
The site has been the subject of two code enforcement cases: for enclosing areas
without permit not pursuant to the approved site plan, and for using Suwanee Dr. to the
west for loading and unloading, as well as utilizing parking spaces for vehicle storage.

The application requests the following amendments associated with the development
order approved via #R-2009-10486:

1. A Development Order Amendment to modify the approved site plan, including
associated conditions of approval as necessary, to add 5,180 sf. of vehicle
showroom, remove a planned 15,496 sf. inventory storage structure, and reconfigure
parking and site circulation;

2. An increase of 123 net new trips per day and 11 pm peak hour trips, from the
existing vested use to be allocated from the WCRA Transportation Concurrency
Exception Area (TCEA) pool.

3. Any variances necessary to bring the site into compliance with current ULDC and
WCRAO regulations; and,

4. Final DRO site plan approval.

Page | 2
WCRA Board Meeting
May 10. 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 o West Palm Beach, Florida 334059 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

A



I“Vfl nan

ﬂnﬂ

B. Recommendation: Staff recommends the approval of

1. A Development Order Amendment to modify the approved site plan, including
associated conditions of approval as necessary, to add 5,180 sf. of vehicle
showroom, remove a planned 15496 sf. inventory storage structure, and
reconfigure parking and site circulation;

2. An increase of 123 net new trips per day and 11 pm peak hour trips, from the
existing vested use to be allocated from the WCRA Transportation Concurrency
Exception Area (TCEA) pool.

3. Any variances necessary to bring the site into compliance with current ULDC and
WCRAO regulations; and,

4. Final DRO site plan approval.

2. 21-01 Round of ULDC Amendments
A. Background and Summary: This round will introduce an alternative single family
housing type to allow smaller dwelling on 25' wide lots and clarifies a few other

regulations as outlined below.

Amendment Timeline
BCC Initiation & draft due to Zoning November 25, 2020

Zoning & Agencies Round Tables April 15 & 16, 2021

Land Development Regulations Advisory Board | April 28, 2021
(LDRB) Meeting

BCC Request for Permission to Advertise June 24, 2021
BCC 15t Reading July 22, 2021
BCC 27 Reading & Adoption August 26, 2021

Page | 3
WCRA Board Meeting
May 10. 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 o West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax 561.640.8180

5



IHV[‘ nfAn

oA

WESTOATEBELYE

DU SR L SR

Summary of Proposed WCRAO Amendments

Part 1 amends Art. 3.B.14.E, WCRAO Use Requlations and Table

= Renames Table 3.B.14.E to “Min/Max Residential and Non-Residential Uses” instead of
“‘Mixed Use” to clarify that the function of the table is to determine where residential or
non-residential development, specific fo Sub-area and by required percentage of GFA,
is allowed.

= Relocates Table 3.B.14.E, footnote #4 which references where multifamily is permitted
by number of units and Sub-area to the WCRAQO Sub-area use regulations table where
it is better suited.

= Amends Table 3.B.14.E, WCRAO Sub-area Use Regulations by introducing an
alternative SF housing type to allow smaller dwellings that can be built on 25" wide lots.
This new SF model, named “South Westgate Estates Single Family Alternative” will only
be allowed in the NRM Sub-area, an area of the overlay which generaily corresponds to
original South Westgate Estates subdivision plat. This alternative housing type differs
from cottage homes in that there is no 1,000 sf size cap; unit size is determined by
setbacks and building coverage. Also differs from the standard SF model which is
allowed in the NR and NRM Sub-areas on 50’ wide lots.

= Correct scriveners error in Table 3.B.14.E, WCRAQO Sub-area Use Regulations, to
clarify that Gas and Fuel Sales in the Ul Sub-area is subject to the use regulations of
the zoning district since the corresponding cell is now blank forcing the code to remain
silent.

Part 2 amends Art. 3.B.14.F, WCRAQ Property Development Regulations and Tables

= Most amendments in Part 2 are clarify intent, are corrective, or are for consistency with
other sections of the overlay.

» Restate intent and applicability of the section by adding clarifying language: Table
3.B.14.F, WCRAQO Non-Residential and Mixed Use Sub-area PDRs applies to all non-
residential and mixed use development according to Sub-area; and, Table 3.B.14.F,
WCRAO Residential Sub-area PDRs applies to residential-only uses across sub-areas
as permitted.

»  Within Table 3.B.14.F - WCRAOQO Non-Residential and Mixed Use PDRS:

= Reiterate that PDRs for SF development in the NR Sub-area do not apply (N/A) in
this table. PDRs for SF development area found the Residential PDR table

= Strike out "build to line” in the row header since not all Sub-areas require a build to
line but instead minimum front setback

Page | 4
WCRA Board Meeting
May 10. 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 e West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

(o



WESTGATEBEEVEDERE HOMES

KAt Bl o o8 SR A RN AT

Clarify that build to line standards apply to all development in the UG Sub-area not
only commercial or mixed use projects

Delete “build to line 10-25" in the UH Sub-area and instead add a “min. 10™ front
setback to better allow for front and side setback flexibility for existing smaller, sub-
standard sites along Okeechobee Blvd. between Shawnee and Indian, while
ensuring existing larger development sethack a minimum of 50’ on Okeechobee
Bivd. and Military Trail remains conforming

Add an applicability and clarification note to maximum allowable stories/height to
exempt buildings over 35’ from the requirements of 3.D.1.E.2 in standard code
which states that a structure must be set back an additional foot for every foot of
height over 35'. Applying this provision would conflict with form based code
requirements for build to line and frontage.

=  Within Table 3.B.14.F —- WCRAOQO Residential Sub-area PDRs:

Remove “Sub-area” from the table title since residential PDRs are by residential
use type not be Sub-area specifically

Add “Build to Line” alongside setbacks in the table row heading as well as within
cells where the BTL is required for consistency with the Non-Residential and Mixed
Use PDR table

Include PDRs for the South Westgate Estates Single Family Alternative housing
type. PDRs closely mirror Cottage Home provisions by providing reduced front and
side setbacks, but differs in allowing for a larger dwelling unit by building coverage
maximum

Amend Cottage Home PDRs to better conform to the Cottage Homes use type in
Art. 4. Adds a note to reiterate that Coftage Homes in the WCRAO must conform
to the 1,000 sf. size limitation

Clarify that accessory structures are no permitted to exceed 2 stories in height

Add a note to South Westgate Estates Single Family Alternative which allows the
building coverage to increase by up to 10% to accommodate covered front porches
and rear patios, as well as a provision maximizing the size of attached garages to
15% of building coverage

Part 3 amends Art. 3.B.14.G, WCRAOQO Supplementary Standards Table

Part 3 corrects a few more minor scriveners’ errors where table cells have been left
blank or note numbers have been incorrectly referenced

Page | 5

WCRA Board Meeting

May 10. 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 e West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

.



,!Wfl :;"

ESTGEAESEDIE NS

* HEJF

B. Recommendation: Authorize staff to collaborate with the Palm Beach County Zoning
Division to process the above amendment.

Page | B
WCRA Board Meeting
May 10. 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 e  Woest Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180



Page | 1

WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES CRA BOARD MEETING
May 10, 2021

Staff Update on In-House Projects

CDBG Funding for Demuolition of CRA-Properties (STARTED)

In April 2021 the Board approved a request to authorize PBC DHES to demolish 4 vacant homes on
CRA-owned properties on Cherokee and Westgate Avenues. The CRA purchased the properties in
2018 with the optic of holding the land for private redevelopment. The homes are severely dilapidated,
structurally unsafe, and have become a magnet for criminal activity, contributing to slum and blight in
the community, particularly on Westgate Avenue. Staff applied to a DHES program to access CDBG
funding for the demolition of the homes. The process is to be administered and managed by DHES staff
who will be responsible for procuring contractors, administering the mitigation of asbestos and lead
based paint, and ensuring that the demolition process follows all federal guidelines. The DHES
contractor will acquire all necessary permits and complete the work. The CRA will likely plant grass
following site clearance. The demolition is anticipated to cost $60-80,0000.

2021-01 ULDC Amendment Round (INITIATED)

The CRA is seeking to make amendments to the WCRAOQ in the first round of 2021. The following are
highlights: corrective and clarifying amendments to overlay language and tables generally; introducing
a new housing type called “South Westgate Estates Single Family Alternative” which allows smaller
single family homes, limited to 45% building coverage, to be constructed on 25' wide lots; creating a 10’
minimum front and side street setback in the UH Sub-area; and, exempting all development in the
WCRAO to the provisions of Art. 3.D.1.E.2 which states that a structure must be set back one foot for
each foot of height over 35 — applying this provision conflicts with build to line and frontage
requirements.

This round of ULDC amendments was initiated by the Zoning Division at the January 28" BCC
meeting. A draft of the amendment language was presented to the LDRAB on April 28th with a
unanimous recommendation and no changes requested by the LDRAB. The 1% reading of the
amendments is scheduled for July 22" with adoption by the BCC on August 26", 2021.

Background: Amendments to the County's Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) occur twice
annually. The CRA regularly participates in this process to update areas of its WCRA Zoning Overlay to
better achieve the goals and objectives of the agency and the amended Community Redevelopment
Plan, respond to industry and market trends, simplify processes, and correct technical and [anguage
glitches.

2021 Comprehensive Plan Amendments (STARTED)

The Planning Division is initiating amendments to the WCRAO in the Future Land Use and
Transportation Elements of the Comp Plan. FLUE amendments will address an outdated policy
allowing a 20% commercial bonus increase without amendments to the FLUA, and TE amendments will
update policies related io WDRAOQO Density Bonus Program income categories following the adoption of
the 2020-02 amendments to the DBP in the ULDC. Amendments may also include updates to the
WCRAO narratives in both elements. Planning will take the lead in drafting amendment language.

COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program (ONGOING)

The Board approved the Program at their June meeting. The program is advertised on our website as
well as Facebook page. Staff completed a direct mail cut promoting the availability of the program to



Page|2

Westgate businesses at the end of August. Business types are screened by uses permitted in certain
WCRAO sub-areas. Interest in the program has been robust. Five (5) applications were approved by
the Board at their September 2020 meeting; four (4} more were approved by the Board at their October
2020 meeting; 1 application was approved at the November 2020 meeting; and one application was
approved at the January 2021 meeting. The program budget spans two budget years: $50,000 was
allocated to FY 19/20 and $100,000 is allocated to FY 20/21. The program has budget capacity for four
more applications. Two businesses applied for and received loan forgiveness by the Board in February
2021.

Background: Small businesses have suffered financial loss and hardship due to the COVID-19 crisis.
Small businesses in the CRA district with less than 25 employees can apply for up to $10,000 in
financial assistance in the form of a forgivable loan for eligible expenses associated with rent, payroll
support, inventory purchases, utilities, expenses associated with technology upgrades to facilitate
remote working, andfor expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces fio
accommodate a 6’ physical separation. First come, first served basis. $150,000 from the CRA's FY
19/20 and 20/21 budgets has been allocated to the program.

Public Assistance Grant {ONGOING)

FEMA has approved nearly $100,000 to pay for debris removal, and clean up detention ponds as a
result of Hurricane Irma. Staff is working with the Florida Department of Emergency Management fo
implement this project.

Community Garden/Greenmarket (ONGOING)

Update: The Plat has been granted technical compliance. Following the completion of corner clip
dedications, the project can move into the permitting phase. Construction to install electricity, an
irrigation pump and an irrigation system have been installed. Staff is working on securing a contractor
for site improvements and installation of a pre-manufactured structure to act as a permanent
greenmarket.

Background: Staff engaged Schmidt-Nichols (SN) to prepare a site plan for the community garden and
the green market. The CRA initiated new regulations to allow green markets to operate as an
accessory to community gardens without having to buffer surrounding residential uses with an opaque
wall and 20 ft landscape buffer. The site plan includes an enclosed structure with a bathroom and a
walk-in cooler. The community garden/greenmarket received site plan approval in March 2018.

CRA staff proposed amendment language, adopted in the 2018-02 Round, to eliminate the community
garden use from landscaping requirements, and modified code language regarding hours of operation
and building size and placement for the accessory greenmarket use. Schmidt Nichols submiited an
administrative amendment (ZAR) to remove the landscape buffers and ROW utility easement. The ZAR
was approved in April 2019. The permits have been approved to operate the community garden. The
- electrician and plumbing contractors are working with the utility companies. The CRA will begin to work
with a contractor/architect to design the greenmarket structure and prepare plans to submit for building
permit. Platting is a condition of approval and is underway.

PBC Solid Waste Authority (SWA)} Blighted & Distressed Properties Grants

FY 18/19 — Oswego Avenue Properties Clean-up (STARTED)

Update: The CRA has paid a contractor to remove invasive trees, vegetation and debris on the sites.
An additional time extension of the grant agreement has been provided by the SWA.

\O



Page |3

Staff worked with Schmidt Nichols on the dog park design. A site and landscape plan, along with cost
estimate have been provided. The CRA is also working with County Purchasing to see if the agency
can utilize the County's annual contract “piggyback” policy. The remaining lots will be cleared, sodded,
and fence commensurate with the original scope.

Background: The CRA was awarded in the amount of $92,700 to clean-up, clear, sod and fence 6
vacant CRA-owned properties on Oswego Avenue east of Seminole Blvd. previously earmarked for the
L-2 Canal Expansion project. The CRA is proposing match funds in the amount of $34,460. An
Interlocal Agreement between the CRA & SWA was approved by the BCC in March 2018. The CRA
received a 50% disbursement of total funds in April 2018.

SWA has approved an extension to the grant timeline and a change of scope to develop a dog park on
three of the Oswego Avenue parcels targeted for the properties clean-up. The dog park will include
areas and equipment for small and large dogs, fencing, landscaping, and benches. By the fall of 2018,
the LWDD cleared a majority of the vegetation overgrowth along the L-2 canal leaving a window of
opportunity in the budget to create a simple dog park and still maintain the overall budgeted amount.

PBC_Transportation Planning Agency (TPA) Transportation Alternatives (TAP)} & Local
Initiatives (LI) Grants

FY20 Cherry Road Pedestrian & Safety Improvements (NEW)

Update: The Cherry Road project received approval for funding by the TPA Governing Board in July,
2020.

The CRA engaged consultants, WGI to refine the Cherry Rd. improvements project for TPA TAP grant
application submittal in the 2020 cycle. CRA Staff and WGI worked with Engineering on improving the
proposed typical sections. The project proposes reduced with travel lanes for fraffic calming, new
sidewalks on the south side of Cherry Rd east and west of the bridge to the intersection of Country
Club Rd., a new 12' shared multi-use path on the north side of the corridor, new crosswalks, pedestrian
scale lighting, and shade trees where allowed. The total project cost is $1.96 million. The grant
reimburses $1 million. The application was submitted to the TPA on February 28, 2020.

FY19 and Seminole Blvd. Complete Streets (FUNDED/ONGOING)

Update: The Transportation Planning Agency Governing Board approved funding for the Semincle Blvd
project at their July 18" meeting. The Seminole project was ranked #1. Staff and WGI presented the
projects to FDOT and BTPAC in early April; Seminole was ranked #1 and Cherry Rd was #4. The
Board recommended that the Seminole Blvd project should be pricritized since it ranked higher and is a
larger project. ;

Background: The Board approved a two-fold work assignment with WGI in November 2018 to prepare
a feasibility analysis to identify the best two projects to submit to the TPA for the 2019 Transportation
Alternatives Program (TAP) cycle. Based on findings presented by WGI, the Board selected the
following projects:

1. Seminole Blvd Complete Streets which expands existing sidewalks to 10-12 ft. multi-use paths on
each side of the roadway, adds high visibility crosswalks at each intersection, adds pedestrian scale
lighting, and shade frees. The project boundaries are from Okeechobee Blvd. to Oswego Ave. Total
construction cost is $1,622,979. The grant reimburses $1 million.

TAP grant projects are designed and constructed within 3 years of prioritized funding. Design will begin
in 2020 with construction completion in 2022,

FY18 — Westgate Avenue Corridor Complete Streets (DESIGN 50% COMPLETE)

VA



Page | 4

Update: Design has begun on the Westgate Avenue project and must be completed by July 2021
Design is moving forward without a roundabout. CRA Staff met with County Roadway Production and
the project consulting engineers in February to discuss the design, scope and timeline of the project.
The CRA has been asked to provide input on lighting design and landscaping.

A County Selection Committee met in November 2019 and selected American Consulting Engineers of
Florida (ACE) to design the project. CRA staff was in attendance for the presentations and scoring. The
County Engineering Department had shortlisted three firms for the project, including CRA consultants
WGI, however, volume of previous work was an overriding factor in selection.

Background Information: Staff engaged WGI to coordinate the preparation of trave! demand forecast
modelling to determine the impact of reducing Westgate Ave from 5 lanes to 3 lanes utilizing a road diet
approach. WG] facilitated communication with PBC TPA and Engineering to determine the best design
alternative, held a public input meeting, and drafted the final design for the project be used to obtain
funding. WGI met with the Engineering Department to present the lane elimination plan. County staff is
in support of the lane reduction from Wabasso to Congress, but they are not in support of the elevated
landscape median. An alternative design, which allows for 3 lanes (2 thru lanes and one center turn
lane), bike lanes, and floating landscape islands on both sides of the ROW alternating with on street
parking was presented to County Engineering for approval and support. With assistance from WG, the
LI grant application was submitted on March 2, 2018. CRA staff is working with County Engineering
and Administration to design and administer all 3 of the TPA grant projects.

The TPA Governing Board voted to adopt the TPA List of Priority Projects for the LRTP FY 2020-2024
at their September 20, 2018 meeting. Projects that met TPA and FDOT eligibility requirements were
ranked by internal advisory boards, committees and TPA Staff to he forwarded the Governing Board.
The Westgate Avenue Complete Streets project was ranked #1 of 6 entries to receive Local Initiatives
Program funding. This project has been moved up the timeline due to the inability of other funded
projects to proceed. Design can start in July 2019 for FY 2019/20. Construction funding will be
approved after the design is completed.

FY18 — Phase Il Belvedere Heights Streetlights & Sidewalks (DESIGN STARTED)

Update: The BCC is considering an agenda item on June 16" for the design of this second phase. The
TPA Governing Board voted to adopt the TPA List of Priority Projects for the LRTP FY 2020-2024 at
their September 20, 2018 meeting. Projects that met TPA and FDOT eligibility requirements were
ranked by internal advisory boards, committees and TPA Staff to be forwarded the Governing Board.
Phase Il of the Belvedere Heights Streetlights and Sidewalks project was ranked #3 of 4. This project
has been moved up the timeline due to the inability of other funded projects to proceed. Design can
start in July 2019. Construction funding will be approved after the design is completed. The CRA needs
to execute an MOU and provide upfront funding to the County for design.

Background Information: CRA staff prepared and submitted a Transportation Alternatives Program
(TAP) grant application for Phase Il — Wellington Road to Bridgeman Road, of the Belvedere Heighis
Neighborhood for sidewalks and streetlights to PBC TPA in March 2018.

FY17 — Phase | Belvedere Heights Streetlights & Sidewalks {(DESIGN COMPLETE}

Update: The neighborhood has experienced chronic poor drainage and the water mains have reached
the end of their useable life and must be replaced. Mock Roos, the contractor for the
sidewalks/streetlights project requested that PBC Water Ulilities do the water main work prior to the
installation of sidewalks and they have agreed; Mock Roos will also do this work. Engenuity Group has
been working on a drainage design for the area and a request has been made for Water Ultilities in
collaboration with Engineering to do this work ahead of sidewalk installation as well. Water main
replacement will occur January thru March, 2021 with drainage in March thru July, 2021. Construction

\2



Page | 5

on the sidewalks project is set to begin in August 2021.

Engineers are preparing the second part of the design. The Engineering Department has engaged
several consultants through a CRA/County MOU to implement the project. Design is almost completed.
The County is currently reaching out to the residents.

Background Information: An application was submitted to the TPA Transportation Alternatives Grant to
request almost $1 Million to install sidewalks and streetlights in Belvedere Heights in 2017. The funds
will not be available until 2019. The BCC approved Engineering Department sponsorship of the project
via resolution in May 2018.

CRA Strategic Plan {(ONGOING)

CRA staff is continuing to work on a 5-year strategic plan that will implement the goals and objectives of
the amended Redevelopment Plan. A strategic plan will outline the specific tasks, timeline and budget
required for redevelopment activities over the next 5 years. It can also serve as a platform for the CRA
to refine its vision and mission statement in a way that is current with its shifting priorities. Staff has
received some initial input from Board members. Work on the Strategic Plan is ongoing.

Streetlights for Belvedere Homes (ONGOING)

The Engineering Department is partnering with Office and Community Revitalization to install streetlight
in Belvedere Homes. An initial meeting has been held. Citizens are currently gathering signatures and
easement authorization from residents and property owners.

\5



Proposed Private Redevelopment Projects

Page | 6

Below is list of private development projects in the Westgate CRA that are in the entitlements or

permitting process:

Projects

Address

Status

Broward Motorsports

2300 Okeechobee Blvd

DOA to address phased plan, additional
square footage for storage & retail, access

Murphy Express Gas
Station/C-store

1010 Military Trail (Walmart
MUPD)

In Zoning

Demolish vacant Walgreens & relocate
and expand existing Murphy Express and
add c-store

Palm Key Apartments

Cherokee Ave

In Zoning
7 townhome-style multifamily units on .46
ac — utilizing CRA density bonus units

1713 Quait (former Cpportunity
Inc.)

1713 Quail Drive

in Zoning

Repurposing existing building for new
medical office use

Rezoning to CG, multipie variances

Museo Vault self-service
storage

4200 Westgate Ave

In Zoning
proposing a 4-story, 50,000 sf fine art and
antique storage facility

Autumn Ridge LITC mixed use

Congress Ave

In Zoning

106 units by Landmark Construction, 90%
of units at or below 60% of AMI =77 DBP
units, TCEA and rezoning from RM to CG

Soapy Shark Car Wash
(formerty KFC/Jack’s)

2200 Okeechobee Blvd.

In Zoning
DRO Approval & 6 variances required

Duplex development

1115 Osceola

Utilizing 1 WCRA density bonus unit, non-
confarming lot

Small Home project

2611 Saranac

Construction on first 7 units has begun in
early 2021

1-acre site newly subdivided into 14 25 ft.
lots for small homes

Congress Avenue -
Greene Apartments

1600 N. Congress Ave

DRO approved — project now in permitting
198 units (138 density bonus units from
WCRA pool; 55 income restricted)

Issues with compensating storm water
storage — SFWMD permit received at end
of July utilizing available acre feet from
the Preserve

MacDonald Industrial/McArthur
Dairy

N. Flerida Mango

On hold

Type 2 waiver for extended hours of
operation. BCC approved January.
Construction to begin mid 2019

Mi Pais Express (Fernandez)
Mixed Use

2633 Westgate Ave

IN CONSTRUCTION!

Dos Hermanos Mixed Use

Westgate & Seminole Blvd

In permitting
Rezoning & variances approved. DRO site
plan approval. New architect

Westgate One

Westgate at Nokomis

On hold
Approved/ Extension. Potential residential
project

\4



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
1280 N. CONGRESS AVE,, SUITE 215, WEST PALM BEACH, FL. 33409
MINUTES OF THE MONTHLY MEETING

April 12, 2021

CALL TO ORDER (IN PERSON MEETING BROADCASTED ON ZOOM PLATFORM)

Mr. Daniels, the Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 5:05 p.m. The roll was calied
by Ms. Bui.

Present: Ronald Daniels
Joanne Ruity
Ruth Haggerty
Joseph Kirby

Absent: Ralph Lewis
Enol Gilles
Yeraldi Benitez
Staff Present: Elizée Michel, Executive Director
Denise Pennell, Senior Planner
Carmen Geraine, Bookkeeper
Mai Bui, Administrative Assistant
Thomas J. Baird, Esq., General Counsel (Virtually Via Zoom)
Others Present:  Dorritt Miller, Assistant County Administrator, Deputy George
Gomez, Deputy Adam Robinson, Keith Jackson, PE, Engenuity
Group, CRA Engineer (All Virtually Via Zoom)
AGENDA APPROVAL
1. Additions, Deletions, Substitutions to Agenda
- Mr. Michel asks to delete item #2 from Regular Agenda.
2. Adoption of Agenda

- Itwas moved by Ms. Rufty and seconded by Ms. Haggerty to adopt the Agenda
as amended. Motion carried (4-0)

ADOPTION OF W/BH CRA MINUTES

- It was moved by Ms. Haggerty and seconded by Mr. Kirby to adopt the minutes
of the March 08, 2021 meeting. Motion carried (4-0)

\D



Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Minutes of the Monthly Meeting
April 12, 2021
Page 2

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT

- PBSO Deputy Robinson and Deputy Gomez gave a brief report {o the Board
about police activities in the Westgate CRA area for the previous month.

- Mr. Chuck Westnick with Danza Group gave an update on the project in
Westgate CRA. .

V. DISCLOSURES

- No disclosures

VI. CONSENT AGENDA

1. Authorization for Palm Beach County Department of Housing Economic
Sustainability to Demolish CRA Owned Property 2426 Cherokee Avenue and 2423
Westgate Ave.

It was moved by Ms. Rufty and seconded by Mr. Kirby to approve consent agenda.
The motion passed unanimously (4-0)

VIl. REGULAR AGENDA

1. Approval agreement to Convey Land to Palm Beach County for the Development
of Fire Station 24

Purvi Bhogaita, the Director of the Property and Real Estate Management Division of Palm
Beach County made a presentation to the Board. She introduced Ms. Isami Ayala-Collazo,
Director of the Facilities Development, Fire Rescue Chief Reginald K. Duren, Chief
Woodside, and Assistant Chief Kennedy.

Ms. Purvi reminded the Board they had made an initial presentation on December 14,
2021. Since then, County and the CRA staiff has been working on a mutually agreeable
Interlocal Agreement (ILA). The presentation covers the term of the (ILA).

The Fire Rescue Station #24 is currently located on Seminole Boulevard and provide
services {o the residents of the Westgate CRA. There is a need for a newer more modern
station. The Fire Station was built in the 1960s. The delivery of Fire Rescue services has
gone through significant changes since then. There are newer designs standards to
accommodate todays equipment, safety regulations, and a growing and diverse staff. In
2007, the County acquired property from Mr. Pitts diagonally across the existing Fire
Station to build a new FS, however, the location is not ideal since it is tucked inside the
neighborhood and will have a significant impact on Fire Rescue response time to
emergencies within the CRA neighborhood. The County desired to relocate Fire Rescue
Sation #24 to Westgate and Seminole as a potential site to build the new Fire Station and

\Lo



Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Minutes of the Monthly Meeting
April 12, 2021
Page 3

is requesting the donation of the CRA owned land for the relocation. The site is
approximately 1.3 acre.

The County has been working with CRA staff and had developed the following terms:
Conveyance will be subject to a deed restriction limiting the use of the property for the
development and operation of a fire station. The building will include a 500 square foot
office space for the PBSO community policing officers. However, there will be no public
use space within the Station for security purposes. The County will work with CRA staff to
provide a consistent aesthetic presentation aligned with the CRA’s vision for Westgate
Ave. A 45-day due diligence period which allows the County to conduct due diligence
review, such as title review, survey and environmental assessment.

Ms. Purvi also shared a conceptual plan with the Board that incorporates some comment
from CRA staff such as building presence on Westgate Avenue, drainage facilities
placement in the rear of the property, the space for PBSO community officers along
Westgate and landscape throughout. A more detailed site plan will be developed as the
County engages with its design consultants and moves through the regulatory process of
site plan approval.

Mr. Daniel stated that the Westgate location will be better for Fire Rescue as it will help
them with better response time.

it was moved by Ms. Rufty and seconded by Mr. Kirby to convey the property as
described to Palm Beach County for the development of a Fire Rescue facility. The
motion passed unanimously (4-0)

2. Approval of Acquisition of Cherokee Property from Elite Capital & Development
Inc.

Mr. Michel indicated that Staff has negotiated the acquisition of a property on Cherokee
Avenue between Loxahatchee and Osceola. The property is located near two other lots
that the CRA owns on Westgate Ave. This land assembly will allow the CRA to entice a
developer to build a commercial or a mixed use project with rear access in accordance
with the Westgate CRA Zoning Overlay. The property is a 100°’X118’ vacant lot. It is
zoned commercial. It is appraised for $100,000. It is being bought for $100,000.

Staff recommends that the Board authorizes the Chair to execute a purchase agreement
to acquire the Cherokee property as described in the attached appraisal.

It was moved by Ms. Rufty and seconded by Ms. Haggerty to execute a purchase
agreement to acquire the Cherokee property. The motion passed unanimously (4-
0)



Westgate/Belvedere.Homes CRA Minutes of the Monthly Meeting
April 12, 2021

Page 4

Vill. STAFF REPORTS

Ms. Liliana and Mr. Keith Jackson from Engenuity Group presented to the Board the Phase
1 and Phase 2 of the Belvedere Heights Projects for 2021-2022.

Mr. Michel reported that the Rooney 5K Run was a success. Next year, the Rooney 5K
run will be the Saturday before Easter of 2022.

There was no other report.

iX. AJOURNMENT

It was moved by Ms. Rufty and seconded by Ms. Haggerty to adjourn the meeting.
The meeting adjourned at 5:53p.m.

\/ c\_J/Z— Administrative Assistant, Westgate CRA
/ | ~ MaiBui




i i

WESTGATEBELVEDERE HOMES}

COMLNT MEQRF L B AGENLy

Westgate CRA Board Meeting
May 10, 2021

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Broward Motorsports of Palm Beach
2300 Okeechacbee Blvd.

Development Order Amendment
Control No. 1987-00004

Location Map

Page | 1
Westgaie CRA Beard Meeling
May 10, 2021

. 1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 ®  West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 » 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

\A



Site Background

The subject site is located on the southwest corner of Okeechobee Blvd. and Congress Ave. Broward
Motorsports of Palm Beach, formerly known as Lexus of Palm Beach, is 3.87 acres in total and consists of
a 24,805 sf., one and two story building. The site is approved for and operates a Vehicle Sales and
Rental, Light as the principal use, however, some repair and maintenance services are also provided on
site. The approval also includes a phased plan to allow a one story 45,486 sf. inventory storage
structure. The subject application requests the addition of two new vehicle showroom areas on the east
{at 2,949 sf.) and west (at 2,231 sf.) sides of the building totaling 5,180 sf. The site was originally
approved in 1987 as a Special Exception to allow vehicles sales and rental as well as repairs via BCC Res
#R-87-1099. The site was expanded, improved and operated this way for 20 years before Broward
Motorsports acquired the site, and processed amendments to the site plan and development order to
allow the use to operate specific to the sale and rental of recreation vehicles. #R-2003-939, and most
recently #R-2009-2046 further clarified, via conditions of approval, the types of and number of vehicles
that could be sold, rented or leased, and cited repairs and service as an accessory use.

The entire site is within the UG (Urban General) Sub-area of the WCRAOQ, and is zoned CG {Commercial
General} with a Future Land Use designation {FLU) of CH/8 (commercial high with an underlying
residential land use of 8 du’sfacre). The site is in the URA (Urban Redeveloﬁment Area), the U/S
{Urban/Suburban) Tier, and in the Westgate CCRT area. There are vehicle sales & rental uses to the
north across Okeechobee Blvd. in the City of West Palm Beach. To the west, is a small auto repair shop,
Mr. Mack’s Island Grill restaurant, as weil as residential (zoned CG and RH with a CH/8 and CL/8 FLU), to
the south, multifamily and commercial (zoned CG and RH with a CH/8 and CL/8 FLU), and to the east isa
Chevron Gas Station and an adult entertainment business {Monroe’s) zoned CG with a CH/8 FLU.

Development Order Amendment to Reconfigure the Site Plan & Add Square Footage

Both Vehicle Sales and Rental, Light and Repair and Maintenance, Light, are Class A conditional uses
requiring BCC approval, and continue to be permitted in the UG Sub-area. The use is vested. The
expansion exceeds the threshold to allow the additional square footage by administrative approval, and
the WCRAO provides that all projects requiring Development Order Amendment approval by the BCC
must be reviewed and provided a recommendation by the CRA.

The application requests a Development Order Amendment to amend the site plan, last approved via
#R-2009-1046, to add 5,180 sf. of new vehicle showroom and reconfigure the site plan to remove the
previously approved Phase 2 inventory storage huilding from the overall square footage; parking spaces

Page |2
Westgaie, CRA Board Meeting
May 10, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 » 561.640.8181 » www.westgatecra.org

20



nnR

4nnn

WESTGATEBELVEDERE HOAES

ST HEI ST 00 NGRS

will now be shown at this location, and to make minor adjustments to the site parking areas and
circulation to accommodate new vehicle showroom space. The applicaticn is necessary to bring the site
into compliance. The site has been the subject of two code enforcement cases: for enclosing areas
without permit not pursuant to the approved site plan, and for using Suwanee Dr. to the west for
loading and unloading, as well as utilizing parking spaces for vehicle storage.

Summary of Petition
The application requests the following amendments associated with the development order approved
via #R-2009-1046:
1. A Development Order Amendment to modify the approved site plan, including associated
conditions of approval as necessary, to add 5,180 sf. of vehicle showrocom, remove a planned
15,496 sf. inventory storage structure, and reconfigure parking and site circufation;
2. An increase of 123 net new trips per day and 11 pm peak hour trips, from the existing vested
use.to be allocated from the WCRA Transportation Concurrency Exception Area {TCEA) pool.
3. Any variances necessary to bring the site into compliance with current ULDC and WCRAQO
regulations; and,
4. Final DRO site plan approval.

Existing Conditions - view from Congress Avenue at Okeechobee Blvd. looking west

‘ Page {3
Westgate CRA Board Meeiing
May 10, 2021

1280 N, Congress Avenue, Suite 215 » Waest Paim Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

2\



Sta L
Consistency with the CRA Community Redevelopment Plan

Vehicle sales and rental uses have proliferated in the redevelopment district over time, and to curb this,
the WCRAO now prohibits auto-related uses in the NC, NG and NRM Sub-areas, preserving these Sub-
areas for mixed use, housing, and more neighborhood commercial redevelopment. Although auto-
related uses are rarely catalysts for far-reaching community revitalization, when appropriately located,
such as in the commercially intense corridors in the UH and UG Sub-areas, they do stimulate economic
interest and create additional passer-by trips for other area uses. Broward Motorsports has been an
active use at the corner of Okeechobee Blvd. and Congress Avenue since the late 1980’'s. Given its
visibility on the high traffic Okeechobee corridor, the business, which offers a unique range of
recreational vehicle products and services, will continue to enjoy popularity and success.

Consistency with WCRAD Standards

The UG Sub-area is recognized as an “additional redevelopment area allowing for mixed use
development with more intense commercial and residential uses, including multi-story towers where
feasible”. The site was developed largely to CG zoning district standards, so the site does not fully
conform to current WCRAO code. The building entrance is oriented towards the corner of Congress Ave.
and Okeechobee Blvd. Primary access is from Okeechobee Blvd., and there are also access points on
Congress Avenue and on Suwanee Drive. Minimum lot width, depth and building coverage PDRs for the
UG Sub-area have been met. Maximum building length is 300’ and approximately +/- 260’ is existing.
Although minimum rear and west side setbacks are met, the structure does not meet the current
WCRAQ front and side street build to line requirement of 10°-25’ or the minimum building frontage
requirement of 60%; the building is set back 133’ from the side street property line {Congress Ave.) and
+/-35’ from the front property line (Okeechobee Blvd.), and building frontage is approximately +/- 40%
of property width.

To address these shortfalls to form-based code compliance, the WCRAO does provide some relief:
ROW/easement exceptions from the build to line to accommodate utility easements and buffers may be
possible, as well as frontage exceptions to allow for access driveways, sidewalks, and other code
requirements. Further, WCRAQ landscape modifications allow deviations for ROW or incompatibility
landscape buffers which may be reduced up to 50% in the UG Sub-area for commercial projects, and
reguired foundation planting along any fagade with a required build to line may be deleted.

Page | 4
Westgale CRA Board Meeting
May 10, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.6408181 » www.westgatecra.org

22



WESTGATEELVEDERE HOMES

VONRAINES RERE hl AGERCY !

The site is oddly configured with a notched out area at southeast corner, and this is further
compounded by several underlying LWDD and PBC Water Utilities easements that crisscross the
property. in 2009, the site was granted, among other variances, a variance from the WCRAQ UG Sub-
area requirement of a “10-25' build to line for side street building frontage” for the Phase 2 inventory
storage building, but since the inventory structure is proposed to be removed from the controlling site
plan, this variance becomes null. With the removal of the inventory storage building from the site plan,
extra parking spaces have been added; the site is now over parked with 170 parking spaces provided
and 121 spaces required.

Even though the ‘affected’ area in the DOA application is minimal and the building placement on the site
is vested, for those items that cannot be addressed by WCRAQO deviations and exceptions, Zoning may
require corrective variances to bring the site into compliance with current WCRAO PDRs, and ULDC
standards.

Compliance with Standards for Development Order Amendments

The applicant has provided adequate justification for the Development Order Amendment pursuant to
the Standards of Art. 2.B. The proposed project must be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and
the ULDC; be compatible with surrounding uses and development patterns; incorporate a design that
minimizes adverse and environmental impact; and has adequate available public facilities {concurrency).

Traffic & Drainage Considerations

The project generates less than 21 net new peak hour trips, and therefore has an insignificant |mpact on
roadways, and will meet PBC TPS and concurrency. An increase of 123 net new trips per day; 11 pm
peak hour trips and 9 am peak hour trips, from the existing vested use to be allocated from the WCRA
Transportation Concurrency Exception Area (TCEA) pool.

The site is located within the C-51 basin and discharges into the LWDD E-3-1/2 canal. The existing storm
drainage system consists of a network of interconnected pipes and catch basins leading to an existing
dry detention area at the south west corner of the site, prior to discharging through the existing control
structure for legal positive outfall to the LWDD canal. Due to its location in the C-51 basin, this project,
including site grading, will be reviewed for compensating floodplain storage and permitted through the
SFWMD.

Fage !5
Westgale CRA Board Meeling
May 12, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

25



Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of applicant’s request for the following amendments associated with the
development order approved via #R-2009-1046:
1. A Development Order Amendment to modify the approved site plan, including associated
conditions of approval as necessary, to add 5,180 sf. of vehicle showroom, remove a planned
15,496 sf. inventory storage structure, and reconfigure parking and site circulation;
2. An increase of 123 net new trips per day and 11 pm peak hour trips, from the existing vested
use to be allocated from the WCRA Transportation Concurrency Exception Area {TCEA) pool;
3. Any variances necessary to bring the site into compliance with current ULDC and WCRAO
regulations; and,
4, Final DRO site plan approval.

Page | 6
Westgate CRA Board Meeling
May 10, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

24



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION FORM #1

Palm Beach County Zoning Division
2300 N. Jog Road

West Palm Beach, Florida 33411
Phone: (561) 233-5200

Fax: (561) 233-51865

~7 Check Type(s) of Apphcat:on Request(s) and complete as apphcable
EPUBLIC HEARING REQUESTS ‘

O O OO0

O

o0 0o oog

Official Zoning Map Amendment from Zoning District to Zoning District
With a Concurrent Land Use Amendment from Land Use to Land Use
Class A Conditional Use (CA) for

Class B Conditional Use (CB) for:

Development Order Abandonment (ABN) of Resolution No: which allowed

Expedited Application Consideration (EAC) for:

Development Order Amendment (DOA}to a previously approved:
(O coz [J poDADD [ClassA [ ClassB [ Other:

O To modify and/for delete Conditions of Approval; O To add and/or delete land area;
To reconfigure Plan(s) [] Master [ Site [ Subdivision [0 To add and/or delete units;
[0 Landscape [] Regulatng [J Sign Plan [0 To add, delete, or modify Uses;
To add andfor delete square footage; [3 To add access points;
[J Other:
Type 2 Variance: (Submit Form #43 Variance Supplemental) Concurrent O Standalone [J
Subdivision Variance: (Submit Form #43 Variance Supplemental) Concurrent O standafone [J
PO Deviations: (Submit Form #92 PO Deviation) from Arlicle(s)
Pre-Application Conference (PAC) IRO or PRA:  With Questions? [ yes [CNo
Type 2 Waiver: (Submit Form #19 Waiver Supplernental) Goncurrent [] Standalone []
Unique Structure:
Other:

DRO ADMINISTRATIVE REQUESTS:

0 Expedited Development Review Officer approval (DRQE) (within 2 months of BCC/ZC approval)

[0 Usesubjectto Development Review Officer (DRO) approval for

[ Pre-Application Conference (PAC) - Concurrent Review: With Questions? Oves [dNo

0 Type 2 Concurrent Review: [l with Building Permit # or ] with Plat, Name/No.

O Type 3 Concurrent Review (Zoning, Land Development and Building)

[] Administrative Modification to a Plan approved by the ZC / BCC / DRO for

[0 Administrative Abandonment (ABN) of a DRO Approval

[0 Subdivision

0  Transfer of Development Rights (TDR) (Submit Form #16 TDR Supplemental)

O  Type 1 Waiver (Submit Form #19 Waiver Supplemental) from Article for

B other
General Application — Public Hearing and DRO Admirusirative Processes Revised 7/1/2020
Page 1 af 4 Wel Formal 2015

25



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION FORM# 1

B

Current Property owner(s) Name: Broward Motorsports of Palm Beach LLC

Address: 16400 NW 2nd Avenue, Suite 203 City: Norh Miami
State; FL Zip: 33169
Phone; Cell Phone:

Email Address:

Applicant's name (if other than property owner(s). Same

Address: City:
State: Zip:
Phone; : Cell Phone:

Email Address:

Check () here if Applicant is a contract purchaser. Consent is required from the contract purchaser if a contract is pending to
purchase the subject property. Home Owners Association {HOA) or Property Qwners Association (P OQA) consent will
be required if subject properly is under common ownership or request is to modify any aspect of the project which applies to the
entive development {i.e, condition of approval, internal rocadway, etc.)

Agent* George G, Gentile Name of Firm: 2GHQ
Address: 1907 Caommerce Lane Suite 101 City: Jupiter State: FL Zip: 33458
Phone: 561-575-9557 Cell Phone #: 561-718-4320

Email Address: gecrge@2gho.com

Agent:* Patricla Lentini/Ben Dolan Name of Firm: 2GHO
Address: 1907 Commerce Lane Suite 101 Gity: Jupiter State: FL Zip: 33438
Phone: 561-575-9557 Cell Phone #: 561-348-0686

Email Address: pat@2gho.com and ben@2gho.com

* All correspondence will be sent to the Agent{s) uniess otherwise specified.

R o ]fﬂﬂ:" AR TN .“ﬂ:ﬁ’,wkliléhﬁ‘ﬁmy';ﬁ?ﬁgﬁ_nhﬂap" J; ‘\%
R RO N ORTION TR S R
A. *Property Gontrol Number {(PCN): .
(List a':'ditiayna.' PCN(s} on separare(shaer)) 00-43-43-30-23-001-0000

B. *Control Number: 1987-06

C. *Control Name : Broward Motorsports of Palm Beach
D. Application Number: TBD

E. *Application Name: Broward Motorsports of Palm Beach
F. Project Number: 5724-001

G. *Gross Acreage: 3.87 acres

H. Gross Acreage of affected area: same

. *Location of subject property:

{oroximity fo closest majorintersection/roag) | S0Uthwest corner of Okeechobee Boulevard and Congress Avenue

J. *Address: 2300 Okeechobee Boulevard

K. *BCC District: 7

L. Overlay (Special Study Area): WCRA

M. Tier ws [ REX [JAGR [] GLADES

Current Future Land Use oposed Future Land Use

designation: CH/8 designation: same

Current Zoning District: CG Proposed Zaning District: same

Existing Use(s): dealership/service Proposed Use(s): same

Existing Square Footage: | 24 805 Proposed Square Footage: | 29,985 s.f,

Existing Number of Units:| N/A, Proposed Number of Units: |N/S
General Application — Public Hearing and DRO Administrative Processes Revised 7/1/2020
Page 2 0f4 Web Format 2015

210



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION FORM #1

k5. ARCHITECTURAL REVIEV

This application is subject to the requirements of Article 5.C, Design Standards and request review of the
proposed elevations concurrent with:

[ Type 1 Projects Requiring BCC Approval 3 Type 3 Projects Requiring DRO or Site Plan Approval
[0 Type 2 Projects Requiring ZC Approval Type 4 Projects Requiring Building Permit Approval

This application also includes request(s} for Elevation review and consideration, as indicated below:

[] Revise previously approved Elevations;

1 Non-conforming structures thal are subjectto Article 5.C, Percentage of Renavations;
O Approval for Green Architecture (Type T Waiver, Art.5.C.1.E.3)

[ Approval for Unique Structure (Art.5.C.1.E.2)

ofe: Alf application documents shalf be consistent with the current Technical Manual, refer (o the Zoning Weh Page.

Complete the chart below to identify the Use and Zoning information for the surrounding propertiss {o the project
Adjacent FLU Zoning Existing Use Approved Use E:isf:irg Aspprf?v::! Cc‘;:?('gl # Resolution
Property District | (Res, Comm, Ind, etc,)| (Res, Comm, ind, ete})| py IAC qu AC Pefition #) #R_

EAST CH/8 CG |commercial plaza same 85.24 | R5-807B

NORTH COMME | COMME | CAR DEALERSHIP same CWPB

RCIAL RCIAL
soutH | CH/8 CG |CAR DEALERSHIP same 91-018
west | CH/8 CG multiple uses See 8P See SP | See SP

ek ey e b U

Is the property in compliance with all previous Conditions of Approval and applicable Code
vEs X no [ Requirements? If no, piease explain in the Justificafion Statement.

bl e 1R Y

NO [] 1s the property currently the subject of Code Enforcement action?

YES If yes, provide Code Enforcement Case Number:

YES [] NOX Will the request require modification(s) to a recorded plat or plat with Technical Compliance?
If yes, explain in the Justification Statement.

YES NO [J Is the subject property an existing legal lot of record?
= If no, submit Legal Lot Review Application to the Land Development Division.

= | Does the proposed improvements exceed the allowable improvement value of the existing structure
ves 0J NO as idenfified in ULDC, Aticle 17 f yes, comply with Article 1.F — Nonconformities.

ROPOSED USEDETAILS . -
_ Usa(s) - Sgiare | Number of Phase
Building Name- (as per ULDC) Footage Units Name - |- Outparcal
Existing Vehicle dealership 24,805
additions to existing 5,180 s.f.
building
Generat Apphcation — Public Hearng and DRO Administrative Processes Revised 7/1/2020
Page 3 of 4 Web Formal 2015

20



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION FORM # 1

AR ONCURRENC

Concurrency Reservation Concurrency Equivalency [] Concurrency Exemption [
A. Water Provider: PBCWUD
B. Waste Water Provider: PEBCWUD
C. Drainage District: LWDD
D. Traffic Provider: PBC Traffic Trips Existing:
E. Mass Transit Provider: PALM TRAN Traffic Trips Proposed:
F. Traffic Capacity: Ut greetr o 30.» s sty wi  reqrec)
G. Public Schoot: N/A
H. Public Health Provider: PBC Well /Septic tank : NO
1. Parks PBC
J. Fire Rescue STATION 24- 1734 SEMINOLE BOULEVARD
K. Solid Waste: WASTE PRO
L. Check the proposed means of achieving access from the development site to a point of Legal Positive

Outfall for storm water discharged from the site:

[J Property is contiguous to a natural waterway, or a canal owned and operated by a water control district.

[0 Praperty owner has legally established drainage rights to convey storm water through all intervening properties
between the development site and natural waterway or water control district canal.

Property abuts a road with a functioning drainage system, and property owner has obtained written confirmation
from the entity responsible for maintaining the road that the proposed development is eligible to utilize the road
drainage system, subject to meeting all permit requirements for drainage connection.

O Other (specify):

;ENVIRONMENTAL'RESOURCE MANAGEMENT (ERNY - Art.‘14.3 oo

{] Yes [Xl No Ifyes; a Pre-Application Appolntment with ERM is requnrec!

Is there Native Vegetation on Site? Enter date of PAA meeting with ERM

General Vegetation Statement:
Developed site

Existing and Proposed
Grade/Elevation where existing
Native Vegetation is to be preserved.

Is site in a Wellfield protection zone? |[] Yes [X]No [fyes; submit Wellfield Protection Affidavit, available from ERM

HEALTH DEPARTMENT = Art.15 -

in Justification Statement, under headmg “Hazardous Matenal" address type(s) and amount of;

1)all industrial, manufactunng, special or hazardous waste that may be generated; 2) airborne pollutants that
may be generated (i.e. dust or other unconfined particulates such as NOx, SOx, CO, VOC's, heavy metals,
etc.); and, 3) any special handling of solid waste that may be required.

This application is not complete without the followina documents as attachmenis:

1. Justification Statement: to address the purpose, project history, intent and design objectives of
this request, refer to Art.2,.A.6.A,1 for the required information.

2. Status of Conditions of Approval (COA):
a. Provide lefter/document which includes the status of all current Conditions of Approval;
b. Include the exact language for any modification(s) to any Condition of Approval;
c. If the application request requires time extension for Commencement of Development or
recording a Plat, then provide further explanation. (This explanation may be added to the
Justification Statement.)

Note: Please refer to PZB Zoning Website for all ULDC Articles http:/f'www.pbcgov.com/ulde/index.htm
referenced in this document and the Technical Manual for helpfal information
http:/iwww.pbegov.com/techmanual/index.hitm

General Application - Public Hearing and DRO Administrative Processes Revised 7/1/2020
Page 4 of 4 Web Format 2015

28



Landscape Architects ~ Planners  Environmental Consultants

GENT"..E GLAS HOLLOWAY O'MAHONEY&Assaciates,Inc.

George G. Gentile FASLA
An Trov Holloway 25LA
Emily M. O'Mahoney ~SLA
Dol Buchmaster Glas AICP

BROWARD MOTORSPORTS OF PALM BEACH
JUSTIFICATION STATEMENT
DEVELOPMENT ORDER AMENDMENT
ORIGINAL SUBMITTAL: APRIL 26, 2021

Request/Location:
2GHO, Inc. as agent for the applicant, Broward Motorsports of Palm Beach, LLC,
respectfully requests approval of the following request:

1. Development Order Amendment (DOA) for a redesign of the site including two (2)
additional showroom square footage;

The subject site is located on the southwest corner of the intersection of Okeechobee
Boulevard and Congress Avenue in Paim Beach County, Florida. The Property has a
Future Land Use designation of CH/8 — Commercial High/Residential 8 and Zoning
designation of CG — Commercial General District. The property is also located within the
boundaries of the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Plan and
covered by the Westgate Community Redevelopment Area Overlay. The subject site is
located within Palm Beach County Urban/Suburban Tier. Below are the surrounding land
use, zoning and approvals:

S”Sti’izd CH/8 CG Dealership Dealership 1987-0006 R;%%%g"
N WPB - | WPB-C Dealership Dealership WPB WPB
orth c
CL/8 RH and | MF residential & MF residential & N/A N/A
South and CG commercial commercial 1991-018
CH/8
CH/8 CG Gas station Gas station 1989-126 R91-1074
East Retail plaza Retail plaza 1985-24 R85-6078
Self-storage Seli-storage 1999-090 R0O0-0572
CH/8 CG and Restaurant, Restaurant N/A N/A
West and CL8 RH Auto repair and Auto repair and 1985-154 R86-240
residential Residential N/A N/A

History on the subject site:

In 1987, the site was approved with a Special Exception to allow a commercial new
and used automobile, truck, boat, motorcycle, mobile home, recreational vehicle, sales,
rental and repair facility (R-87-1099). This approved used was reconfirmed by R-89-
1635 when additional land was added to the site. The site was improved as an
automobile dealership in 1987 and was utilized as such for approximately 20 years

;.. 1907 Commerce Lane, Suite 10t Jupiter, Florida 33458 561-575-9557 561-575-5260 Fax www.2gho.com

23



Broward Motorsports of Palm Beach
Justification Statement

April 26, 2021

Page 2

before Broward Motorsports acquired the property and processed amendments to the
zoning approval to accommodate its particular operation.

In 2009, Broward Motorsports reconfigured the site plan relative to, among other
things, its display areas, employee parking and designated public parking areas:
however, the general site configuration remained the same as that of the prior auto
dealership. While the existing Special Exception included the types of vehicles proposed
to be sold and repaired by Broward Motorsports, zoning records reflect that staff
concluded there was a need to modify and clarify existing conditions of approval to better
describe Broward Motorsports' specific use. Therefore, where the prior use limitation
condition specifically referred to the sale, leasing and repair of new or used
automobiles and customary accessory uses (R2003-939), this condition was amended in

R2009-1046 (use Limitation Condition No. 2) to provide as follows:

‘Use of the site shall include commercial retail sales/leasing andfor vehicle
sales/leasing and/or repair/service and customary accessory uses.”

Complete List of Approvals:

1987-00006/ Relocation of square footage Withdrawn 10/30/2019
ZAR 2019-00805
CDTE 2019-83500 | Time extension for COA Approved 07/09/2019
ZAR 2017-00303 Relocation of square footage Withdrawn | 08/15/2017
ZAR 2016-0567 Allow bull-ben parking Approved 06/02/2017 | 2016-00567-1
CDTE 2016-73193 | Time extension on commencement | Approved 05/04/2016
DRO 2015-01939 AA modification of site plan Approved 04/18/2015
ZZR 2014-01767 Removal of 40 s.f. signage Approved 10/27/2014
CDTE 2014-66805 | Time extension for COA Approved 07/28/2014
CDTE 2011-51273 | Time extension on commencement | Approval 10/03/2011
CDTE 2010-40327 | Time extension for COA Approval 07/02/2010
CDTE 2010-35285 | Time extension for COA Approval 01/7/2010
CDTE 2009-34954 | Time extension for COA Approval 01/07/2010
1987-0006 Re-designate land uses and site Approved 06/04/2009 | ZR-2009-0021/R-
ZV/DOA-00219 changes 2009-1046
AVE-2007-01498 Time Extension Approved 10/18/2007
SR-1987-6D Time Extension Approved 9/27/2007 -
AVE-2007-1071 Time Extension Approved 8/16/2007
BA2006-1561 Width of Landscape Buffer and Approved 11/16/2006
Landscape Easement Overlap
BA2006-1165 Width of Landscape Buffers and Approved 9/21/2006
Building Setback due to ROW
dedication
1987-006D Add Land Approved 7/22/2003 R-2003-939
BA2003-005 Buffer, Sethack and Pervious Area | Approved 3/20/2003
Reductions

G \Westgate CRA\Private Redevelopment Projects\Boward Motorsports\DOA_expansion & parking structure\Justification statement.docx

A0



Broward Motorsports of Palm Beach
Justification Statement

April 26, 2021
Page 3
1987-006C Car Sales Approved 12/3/1998 R-1998-2038
1987-06(B) Add S.F. Approved 10/23/1997 | R-1997-1573
BA1997-53 Crientation of Bay deoors (vehicle Approved 6/19/1997

service)
1987-0006 Approved . 1991 DRC-1991-00018
1987-061(A) SE Add Land Rezone Approved 09/12/1989 | R-1989-1635/ R-

1989-1634

1987-06 SE Approved 07/28/1987 | R-1987-1099

Request — Development Order Amendment Application:

The request for DOA application wili allow fwo (2) additional showrooms proposed on

the east and west side of the existing building for a total of 5,180 square feet. The

proposed changes are as follows:

— Removal of the previously approved inventory storage building from the overall
square footage, parking spaces are now shown in this location;

— Minor adjustments to the overall site to accommodate the two (2) additions;

The subject site has been cited by the Palm Beach County Code Enforcement Division
{Case Number C-2013-09200041) for the following violation of the ULDC:
— Article 2.A.1.G.3.e. Plan Requirements — Site plan — the site is not operating
per the controlling site plan;
— Article 6.A.1.D.3 and Article 6.B.1.G.1 — using streets/driveways for loading and
unloading and using required parking spaces for display or storage.

Traffic Statement:
A Traffic Statement has been included to identify the addition of 5,180 square feet of
showroom and is being prepared by PTC Traffic Consultants.

Standards for Development Review Officer:

Development Order Amendment and Conditional Use Standards:

Based on Article 2.B.7.C.2 for a Development Order Amendment (DOA) refers the
Applicant to address the Standards under Article 2.B.7.B.2 of the Palm Beach County
Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) establishes standards by which these requests
shall be considered.

a. Consistency with the Plan:

Response: The proposed DOA is consistent with the purposes, goals, objectives and
policies of the Plan. The subject site has a Future Land Use Designation of CH/8.
Additionally, the subject property is located within the Urban/Suburban Tier. Based on
Policy 2.2.2.-a — intersection location — Commercial High future fand use designations
shall have frontage on two built roadway segments. The subject site is located at the
southwest corner of the infersection of Okeechobee Boulevard and Congress Avenue
and is contiguous with other Commercial High Land Use Designations.

G:\Westgate CRA\Private Redevelopment Projects\Boward Motorsports\DOA_expansion & parking structurelJustification statement.docx

5\



Broward Motorsports of Palm Beach
Justification Statement
April 26, 2021
Page 4

b. Consistency with the Code:
Response: The proposed DOA complies with all applicable standards and provisions of

this Code for use, layouf, function and general development characteristics.
additional showroom complies with the vehicle sales and rental, light in the ULDC.

¢. Compatibility with Surrounding Uses:
Response: The subject site is surrounded on all four (4) sides with commercial land use

and zonrni
' CH/8 CG R-2009-

The

Stbjedt Dealership Dealership 1987-0006 200
N WPB -~ | WPB-C Dealership Dealership WPB WPB
orth C -
CL/8 RH and | MF residential & MF residential & N/A N/A
South and CG commercial commercial 1991-018
CH/8
CH/8 CG Gas station Gas station 1989-126 R91-1074
East Retail plaza Retail plaza 1985-24 R85-6078
Self-storage Self-storage 1999-090 R0O0Q-0572
CH/8 CG and Restaurant, Restaurant N/A N/A
West and CL8 RH Auto repair and Auto repair and 1985-154 R86-240
residential Residential N/A N/A
d. Design Minimizes Adverse Impact:
Response: The design of the proposed use minimizes adverse effects, including visual
impact and intensity of the proposed use on adjacent lands. The proposed showroom
are additions fo the existing vehicle sales facility and do not provide any adverse
impacts to the surrounding properties.
e. Design Minimizes Environmental Impact:
Response: The proposed amendment and design minimizes environmental impacts,
including, but not limited to water, air sformwater management, wildlife, vegetation,
wetlands and the natural functioning of the environment. With the proposed increase in
square footage there is an increase of XX daily trips.
f. Development Patterns:

Response: The proposed DOA will result in a logical, ordetly and timely development
pattern. The existing configuration of the site will the existing building and existing

driveway curb cuts does not affect the surrounding properties.

g. Adequate Public Facilities:
Response: The proposed DOA complies w;th Article 2.F, Concurrency. The property
currently has an existing building with services for public facilities. With the proposed

G:\Waestgate CRA\Private Redavelopment Projects\Boward Motorsports\DOA_expansion & parking structure\Justification statement.docx

52



Broward Motorsports of Palm Beach
Justification Statement

April 26, 2021

Page 5

development the existing services will be reviewed upgraded as necessary. Currently
the site is connected fo water and sewer services.

h. Changed Conditions or Circumstances:
Response: There are demonstrated changed conditions or circumstances. This project
has been a staple of the community for quite a long time and adding additional square
footage will facilitate a continued service to the area.

On behalf of the applicant, 2GHO, Inc. respectfully request approval of this application. The
Project Managers at 2GHO, Inc. are George G. Gentile, Ben Dolan and Pat Lentini along

with Susan Taylor, atforney.

G:\Westgate CRA\Private Redevelopment Projects\Boward Motorsports\DOA_expansion & parking structure\Mustification statement.doex

25






EXHIBIT C

STATUS OF CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
RESOLUTION 2009-1046

COMMENCEMENT OF DEVELOPMENT TIME EXTENSION (DORIAN AND COVID) — OCTOBER 8,
2025.

ALL PETITIONS

1.

Condition A.1 of Resolution R-2003-939, Petition DOA&7-006(D), which currently states:

All previous conditions of approval applicable to the subject property, as contained in Resolution R-
1998-2038 (Petition DOA1987-006(C)), have been consolidated as contained herein. The petition
shall comply with all previous conditions of approval and deadlines previously established by Section
5.8 of the ULDC and the Board of County Commissioners, unless expressly modified. SONGOING:
MONITORING Zoning) :

Is here by amended to read:

All previous conditions of approval applicable to the subject property, as contained in Resolution R-
2003-0939 (Petition DOA1987-006(D)), have been consclidated as contained herein. The petitioner
shall comply with all previous conditions of approval and deadlines previously established by Section
5.8 of the ULDGC and the Board of County Commissioners, unless expressly modified. (ONGOING:
MONITORING Zoning). ONGOING

Condition A.2 of Resolution R-2003-0939, Petition DOA87-006(C), which currently states:
Development of the site is limited to the uses and site design as approved by the Board of County
Commissioners. The approved site plan is dated April 14, 2003. All modifications must be approved
by the Board of County Commissioners unless the proposed changes are required to meet conditions
of approval or are in accordance with the ULDC. (ONGOING: ZONING Zoning)

Is hereby amended to read:

Development of the site is limited to the uses and site design as approved by the Board of County
Commissioners. The approved site plan is dated April 13, 2008. All modifications must be approved
by the Board of County Commissioners unless the proposed changes are required to meet conditions
of approval or are in accordance with the ULDC. {ONGOING: ZONING Zoning). ONGOING

Prior to approval by the Site Plan Review Committee the property owner shall record a Unity of Title
on the subject property subject to approval by the County Attorney. (DRC: ZONING — Co ATTY)
Previous condition R.1 of Resolution R03-939, Petition DOA87-006(D))

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW

1.

At the time of submittal for Building Permits, the architectural elevations for all proposed structures
shall be submitted simultaneously with the site plan for final architectural review and approval.
Elevations shall be designed to be consistent with Article 5.C of the ULDC. Development shall be
consistent with the approved architectural elevations, the DRO approved site plan, all applicable
conditions of approval and all ULDC requirements. {Building Permit: ARCH REVIEW — Zoning)

ENGINEERING

1.

Prior to site plan certification, all drainage and road right-of-ways within the project shall be properly
abandoned as determined by the County Attorney. (DRO: ENGINEERING Eng} (Previous Condition
E1 of Resolution R-2003-232, Control No. 1987-006(D)) [Note: Completed]

G:\Westgate CRAPrivate Redevelopment Projects\Boward Motorsports\DOA_expansion & parking structure\Status of
Conditions.docx



10.

The property owner shall pipe the existing drainage diich along the project's east property line
concurrent with onsite paving and drainage improvements. (ONGOING: ENGINEERING Eng)
(Previous Condition E2 of Resolution R-2003-939, Conirol No. 1987-006(D)) [Note: Completed]
Prior to issuance of a building permit the property owner shall convey a temporary roadway
construction easement along Congress Avenue to Palm Beach County. Construction by the applicant
within this easement shali conform to ail Palm Beach County standards and codes. The location,
legal sketches and the dedication documents shall be approved by the County Engineer prior to final
acceptance, (BLDG PRMT: MONITORING Eng) (Previous Condition E3 of Resolution R-2003-939,
Control No. 1987-006(D)) [Note: Completed)]
Prior to June 1, 1999 the property owner shall convey a temporary readway construction easement to
Palm Beach County for that portion of the additional property added to the car dealership along
Congress Avenue. Construction by the applicant within sketches and the dedication documents shall
be approved by the County Engineer prior to final acceptance. (DATE/BLDG PRMT: MONITORING
Eng) (Previous Condition E5 of Resolution R-2003-938, Control No. 1987-006(D)} [Note: Completed]
Prior to January 15, 2004, the developer shall replat the entire Lexus Car Dealership in accordance
with provisions of Article 8 of the Unified Land Development Code. (DATE: MONITORING Eng)
(Previous Condition E6 of Resolution R-2003-939, Control No. 1987-006(D)) [Note: Completed]
Prior to May 1, 2004, the property owner shall convey a temporary roadway construction easement
along Okeechobee Boulevard (entire frontage) and Congress Avenue (entire frontage) to Palm Beach
County. Construction by the applicant within this easement shall conform to all Palm Beach County
Standards and Codes. The location, legal sketches and the dedication documents shall be approved
by the County Engineer prior to final acceptance. (DATE: MONITORING Eng) (Previous Condition
E7 of Resolution R-2003-939, Control No. 1987-006(D)) [Note: Completed)]
The property owner shall convey to Palm Beach County Land Development by warranty deed for:

a. Okeechobee Boulevard, 97 feet from centerline from Congress Avenue to Suwanee Drive;

and,
b. Congress Avenue 64 feet from centerline for the parcel of property being added into the Auto
Dealership as part of this application.

This additional right of way shall be conveyed on or before October 1, 2003, or prior to the
issuance of the first Building Permit whichever shall first occur. Developer shall provide Palm
Beach County with sufficient documentation acceptable to the Right of Way Acquisition
Section to ensure that the property is free of all encumbrances and encroachments.
Thoroughfare Pian Road right-of-way conveyances shall be consistent with Palm Beach

County's Thoroughfare Right of Way ldentification Map and shall “corner clips” (Previous
Condition E8 of Resolution R2003-939, Control No. 1887-006(D)) (BLDG PERMIT:
MONITORING — Eng [Note: Completed]

The concurrency approval is subject to the project aggregation rule set forth in the Traffic
Performance Standards Ordinance. (ONGOING: ENGINEERING Eng) (Previous Condition E9 of
Resolution R-2003-939, Control No. 1987-006(D)) ONGOING
The property owner shall provide by warranty deed submitted to Palm Beach County Land
Development Division for a 25 foot corner clip at the intersection of Okeechobee Boulevard and
Suwanee Drive prior to December 29, 2009, Right of way conveyance shall be free and clear of all
encumbrances and encroachments. Property owner shall provide Palm Beach County with sufficient
documentation acceptable to the Right of Way Acquisition Section to ensure that the property is free
of all encumbrances and encroachments. (DATE: MONITORING-Eng) TIME EXTENSION TO
FEBRUARY 28 2022
In order to comply with the mandatory Traffic Performance Standards, the Developer shall be
restricted to the following phasing schedule:
a. No building permits for the site shall be issued after December 31, 2012. A time extension for
this condition may be approved by the County Engineer based upon an approved Traffic
Study which complies with Mandatery Traffic Performance Standards in place at the time of
the request. This extension request shall be made pursuant to the requirements of Article 2.E

G:\Westgate CRA\Private Redevelopment Projects\Boward Motorsports\DOA_expansion & parking structure\Status of
Conditions.docx

Do



of the Unified Land Development Code. (DATE: MONITORING Eng) TIME EXTENSION TO
JULY 1, 2022

11. No Building Permits for the site shall be issued until the Property Owner provides documentation to

the Traffic Division that the applicable maximum allowable limits for the Westgate TCEA development
identified in Table TE-6 of the Comprehensive Plan will not be exceeded. (BLDG PERMIT:
MONITORING — Eng)

ENVIRONMENTAL

1.

All existing native vegetation, including understory, depicted on the site plan to remain shall be
maintained in perpetuity. Areas where existing native vegetation have been incorporated into the site
plan shall be maintained free from invasive, exotic and non-native species. (ONGOING: ERM ERM)
(Previous Condition No. F.1.0f Resolution No. R2003-0938 Control No. 1987-006 [NOTE:
COMPLETED]

HEALTH

1.

Previous condition G. 1 of Resolution R-2003-239; Control 1987-006 which reads:

Generation and disposal of hazardous effluents into sanitary sewer system shall be prohibited uniess
adequate pretreatment facilities approved by the Florida Department of Environmental Regulation
{FDER}) and agency responsible for sewage works are constructed and used by project tenants or
owners generating such effluents. (ONGOING: HEALTH-Health)

ls hereby amended to read:

Owners and operators of facilities generating hazardous, industrial, or toxic wastes shall no deposit or
cause to be deposited any such wasies inio the sanitary sewer system unless adequate pretreatment
facilities approved by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), the Palm Beach
County Health Department and the agency responsible for sewage works are used. (ONGOING:
CODE ENF-Health) '

Sewer service is available to the property. Therefore, no septic tank shall be permitted for the site.
(ONGOING: HEALTH-Health) (Previous condition G. 2 of Resolution R-2003-939: Control 1987- 006)
Water service is available to the property. Therefore, no well shall be permitted on the site to provide
potable water. (ONGOING:HEALTH-Health} (Previous condition G. 3. of Resclution R-2003- 939;
Control 1987-006)

The developer shall design the drainage system such that drainage from those areas which may
contain hazardous or undesirable waste shall be separate from stormwater runoff from the remainder
of the site.(ONGOING:HEALTH-Health) { Previous condition G. 4 of Resolution R-2003- 939;Control
1987-006)

The owner, occupant, or tenant of the facility shall participate in an oil recycling program which
insures proper re-use or disposal of waste oil. (ONGOING:HEALTH-Health) (Previous condition G. 5
of Resolution R-2003-939; Control 1987-006)

LANDSCAPING — GENERAL

1.

2.

All canopy trees required to be planted on site by this approval shall meet the following minimum
standards at installation:

a. Tree height: fourteen (14)feet.

b. Trunk diameter: 3.5 inches measured 4.5 feet above grade,

c. Canopy diameter: seven (7) feet. Diameter shall be determined by the average canopy
radius at 3 points measured from the trunk to the outermost branch tip. Each radius shall
measure at least 3.5 feet in length.

d. Credit may be given for existing or relocated trees provided they meet current ULDC
requirements. (CO: LANDSCAPE - Zoning} {Previous Condition I.1 of Resolution R-03-939,
Petition DOA87-006(D))

All palms required to be planted on site by this approval shall meet the following minimum standards
at installation;

a. Palm heights: twelve {12) feet clear trunk or grey wood, whichever is greater;

Gi\Westgate CRA\Private Redevelopment Projects\Boward Motorsports\DOA_expansion & parking structuretStatus of
Conditions.docx

1



b. Clusters: staggered heights twelve (12) to eighteen (18) feet; and

c. Credit may be given for existing or relocated palms provided they meet current ULDC
requirements. (CO: LANDSCAPE - Zoning) (Previous Condition 1.2 of Resolution R-03-939,
Petition DOAS7-006(D))

3. All new shrub or hedge materials required by condition of approval shall be planted in continuous
masses and in a meandering and naturalistic pattern, consisting of a minimum of two (2) to three (3)
varying heights. Shrub materials shall be continuously maintained to achieve the following heights
and hierarchical effect:

a. Eighteen (18) to twenty-four (24) inches - groundcover and small shrub;

b. Twenty-four (24) to thirty-six (36} inches — medium shrub;

c. Forty-eight {(48) to seventy-two (72) inches — large shrub; and,

d. This condition does not apply where a single row of shrubs is required. {(CO: LANDSCAPE -
Zoning) (Previous Condition [.3 of Resolution R-03-938, Petition DOA8Y-006({D))

4. All canopy trees to be planted within overhead utilities easement shall be consistent with FP&L'’s tree
list suggested in the “Plant the Right Tree In the Right Place” guidelines and pursuant to Section
7.3.E.12.a of the ULDC, (CO: LANDSCAPRE — Zoning) (Previous Condition 1.4 of Resolution R-03-
939, Petition DOAS7-006(D))

LANDSCAPING — INTERIOR

1. One landscape island shall be provided for every ten (10) parking spaces. The maximum spacing
between landscape islands shall not exceed one hundred (100} linear feet. (DRC: ZONING — Zoning)
(Previous Condition J.1 of Resolution R-03-232, Petition DOAS7-006(D))

2. Foundation planter strips shall be provided along the north, east and west facades of the
sales/showroom building. The minimum width of the required planter strip shall be five (5) feet. The
combined length of the required planter strip shall be no less than 40% of the accumulative length of
the applicable side of the structure. All required planter strips shall be planted with appropriaie trees,
shrubs and ground cover. (DRC/CQO: ZONING/LANDSCAPE - Zoning) {Previous Condition J.2 of
Resolution R-03-939, Petition DOAS7-006(D))

3. Prior to final Development Review Committee (DRC) approval, the site plan shall be revised to
provide terminal landscape islands along the north side of each row of vehicle storage area added in
the 0.4 acre addition, to include:

a. A minimum width of eight (8} feet excluding curb;

b. Four {4} canopy trees or specimen palms, subject to approval by the Zoning Division;

¢. One (1) small shrub for each ten (10) linear feet of l[andscape island. Shrub shall be planted
at a minimum height of eighteen (18) inches at installation;

d. One (1) medium shrub for each five (8) linear feet of landscape island. Shrub shall be planted
at a minimum height of twenty-four (24) inches at installation;

e. One (1) large shrub for each two (2) linear feet of landscape island, pianted twenty-four
inches on center. Shrub shall be planted at a minimum height of thirty (30) inches at
installation; and,

f. A continuous row of Paurotis palms, maintained to provide a screening effect may be used in
lieu of required shrubs and canopy trees. (LANDSCAPE/DRC: ZONING — Zoning} (Previous
Condition J.3 of Resolution R-03-939, Petition DOAS7-006(D})

4, Prior to final Development Review Committee (DRC) approval, the site plan shall be revised to
indicate a barrier separating the proposed vehicle storage area addition from other use areas on the
site plan. Barriers may be in the form of a landscape strip, curbing, decorative gates, removable
bollards or other suitable barriers subject to approval by the Zoning Division. (DRC: ZONING —
Zoning) (Previous Condition J.4 of Resolution R-03-939, Petition DGAS7-006(D))

LANDSCAPING —- PERIMETER

1. Landscaping and buffering along the north property line fronting on Okeechobee Boulevard, shall be
upgraded to include:
a. A minimum twenty (20) foot wide landscape buffer strip. Buffer may be reduced to seven and
one-half (7.5) feet in width in accordance with Board of Adjusiment variance BA 2003-005;

G:\Westgate CRA\Private Redevelopment Projects\Boward Motorsports\DOA_expansion & parking structure\Status of
Conditions.docx

58



b.
c.

d.

One (1) canopy tree for each thirty (30) linear feet of the property line. Where applicable, all
existing Geiger or Silver Buttonwood trees shall be relocated;

One (1) small shrub for each five (5) linear feet of the property line. Shrub shall be a minimum
height of eighteen (18) inches at installation; and,

One (1) medium shrub for each two (2) linear feet of the property line. Shrub shall be a
minimum height of twenty-four (24) inches at instaliation. (CO: LANDSCAPE — Zoning)
(Previous Condition K.1 of Resolution R-03-939, Petition DOA87-006(D}))

2. landscaping and buffering aiong the north 230 feet of the east property line fronting on Congress
Avenue, shall be upgraded to include;

a.
b.

C.

A minimum twenty (20) foot wide landscape buffer strip. Buffer may be reduced to five (5)
feet in width in accordance with Board of Adjustment variance BA 2003-005;

One (1) canopy tree for each thirty (30) linear feet of the property line. Where applicable, ali
existing Geiger or Silver Buttonwood trees shall be relocated; and;

One (1) medium shrub for each two (2) linear feet of the property line. Shrub shall be a
minimum height of twenty-four (24) inches at installation. (CO: LANDSCAPE — Zoning)
(Previous Condition L.1 of Resolution R-03-939, Petition DOA87-006(D))

3. Landscaping and buffering along the south 250 feet of the east property line fronting on Congress
Avenue, shall be upgraded to include:

a.
b.

C.

A minimum twenty (20) foot wide landscape buffer strip. Buffer may be reduced to five (5)
feet in width in accordance with Board of Adjustment variance BA 2003-005;

One (1) canopy tree for each thirty (30) linear feet of the property line. Where applicable, all
existing Geiger or Silver Buttonwood trees shall be relocated;

One (1) medium shrub for each five (5) linear feet of the property line. Shrub shall be planted
at a minimum height of twenty-four (24) inches at installation;

One (1) large shrub for each two (2) linear feet of the property line, planted twenty-four inches
on center. Shrub shall be planted at a minimum height of thirty (30} inches at installation, to
be maintained at a minimum height of seventy-two (72) inches; and,

A continuous row of Paurotis palms, maintained to provide a screening effect may be used in
lieu of required shrubs and canopy trees. (CO: LANDSCAPE — Zoning) (Previous Condition
L.2 of Resolution R-03-239, Petition DOAS7-006(D))

4, Landscaping along (SUWANEE DRIVE) property line shall include:

a.
b.
c.

A ten (10) foot wide landscape buffer strip;

One fourteen (14) foot high native, canopy tree planted at twenty (20) feet on center; and
Thirty six (36) inches high shrub or hedge material spaced no more than twenty four (24)
inches on center and maintained at a minimum height of forty eight (48) inches. (CO:
LANDSCAPE: ZONING — Zoning) {Previous Condition M.1 of Resolution R-03-839, Petition
DOAB7-006(D))

5. Landscaping and buffering along the south 83 feet of the east property line, and east 107 feet of the
south property line abutting commercial, shalt be upgraded to include:

a.
b.
c.
d

LIGHTING

A minimum five (5) foot wide landscape buffer strip;

One (1) canopy tree planted every twenty (20) feet on center;

One (1) palm or pine tree for each thirty (30) linear feet of frontage; and

Thirty (30) inch high shrub or hedge material, spaced no more than twenty four (24) inches
on center at installation, to be maintained at a minimum height of thirty-six (36} inches.
(LANDSCAPE: ZONING — Zoning) (Previous Condition 0.1 of Resolution R-03-939, Petition
DOA87-006(D))

1. All outdoor lighting used to illuminate the subject property and identification signs shall be of low
intensity, shielded and directed down and away from adjacent properties and sireets.
(CO/ONGOING: BLDG/CODE ENF — Zoning) (Previous Condition P.1 of Resolution R-03-939,
Petition DOA87-006(D))

G:\Westgate CRAWPrivate Redevelopment Projects\Boward Motorsports\DOA_expansion & parking structure\Status of

Conditions.docx

A



2. All new outdoor lighting fixtures shall not exceed twenty five (25) feet in height, measured from

finished grade to highest point. (CO: BLDG - Zoning) (Previous Condition P.2 of Resolution R-03-
939, Petition DOA87-006(D))

3. All outdoor lighting shall be extinguished no later than 10:00 p.m., excluding security lighting only.
(ONGOING: CODE ENF — Zoning} (Previous Condition P.3 of Resolution R-03-939, Petition DOA87-
006(D))

SIGNS

1. No advertising flags, foreign flags, pennants, banners, streamers, balloons, objects, gimmicks or
similar signs designed to attract the attention of the general public shall be permitted outdoors on any
building, vehicle or wall. (ONGOING: CODE ENF - Zoning) {Previous Condition Q.1 of Resolution R-
03-939, Petition DOAS7-006(D))

2. Any wall signs shall be limited to the north and east facades of the showroom/sales building. (CO:
BLDG PRMT — Zoning) {Previous Condition Q.3 of Resolution R-03-939, Petition DOAS87-006(D))

3. No additional freestanding signs except for directional signs shall be permitted on site. (ONGOING:
CODE ENF - Zoning) (Previous Condition Q.4 of Resolution R-03-939, Petition DOAS&7- 006(D))

4. Replacement or relecation of existing freestanding point of purchase signs on Okeechobees Boulevard
shall be limited as follows:

a. Maximum sign height, measured from finished grade to highest point: fifteen (15)feet;

b. Maximum sign face area: seventy-five (75) square feet per side;

¢. Maximum number of sings: one (1),

d. Style: Monument style only:

e. Location within fifty (50) feet of the Okeechobee Boulevard entrance;

f.  Exceptions: The existing metal pylon sign (excluding the portion housing the electronic
message board) may be relocated one (1) time to accommodate the addition of a right turn
lane on Okeechobee Boulevard; and,

g. Signs shall be limited to identification of tenants only. (CO/DRC: BLDG/ZONING — Zoning)
(Previous Condition Q5 of Resolution R 03-939, Petition DOA87-006(D))

Is hereby deleted: [REASON: Variance condition only allows one (1) sign.]

5. Replacement or relocation of existing freestanding point of purchase signs fronting on Congress
Avenue shall be limited as follows:

a. Maximum sign height, measured from finished grade to highest point: fifteen (15} feet;

b. Maximum sign face area: fifty (50) square feet per side;

c. Maximum number of sings: cne {1},

d. Style: Monument style only:

e. Location; Congress Avenue frontage; and,

f.  Signs shall be limited to identification of tenants only. (CO/DRC: BLDG/ZONING — Zoning)
{Previous Condition Q5 of Resolution R 03-939, Petition DOA87-006(D))

Is hereby deleted: [REASON: Variance condition only allows one (1) sign.]
6. Replacement or relocation of existing freestanding point of purchase signs fronting on Okeechobee

Boulevard and Congress Avenue shall be limited as follows:

Maximum sign height, measured from finished grade to highest point: fifteen (15)feet;
Maximum sign face area: fifty (50) square feet per side;

Maximum number of sings: one (1),

Style: Monument style only:

Location; Congress Avenue frontage; and,

Signs shall be limited to identification of tenants only. (CO/DRC: BLDG/ZONING — Zoning)
(Previous Condition Q5 of Resolution R 03-939, Petition DOA87-006(D))

N

BUILDING AND SITE DESIGN

G:\Westgate CRAVPrivate Redevelopment Projects\Boward Motorsports\DOA_expansion'& parking structure\Status of
Conditions.doex

AO



The maximum height for all structures, measured from finished grade to highest point, shall not
exceed thirty-five (35) feet. (BLDG PERMIT: BLDG — Zoning)} (Previous Condition C.2 of Resolution
R-03-939, Petition DOA&7-006(D))

All air conditioning and mechanical equipment shall be roof mounted and screened from view on all
sides in a manner consistent with the color, character and architectural style of the principle structure.
(BLDG PERMIT: BLDG — Zoning} (Previous Condition C.3 of Resolution R-03-939, Petition DOAS87-
008(D)).

All areas or receptacles for the storage and disposal of irash, garbage, recyclable material or
vegetation, such as dumpsters and trash compactors, shall not be located within twenty-five (25) feet
of a residential property line, nor be located in a Lake Worth Drainage District Easement (LWDD:
ONGOING: ZONING/CCDE ENF - Zoning) {(Previous Condition D.1 of Resolution R-03-839, Petition
DOA87-006(D)).

Prior to final Development Review Committee (DRC) approval, the site plan shall be revised to delete
the Congress Avenue access point located in the 0.4 acre addition. {(DRC: ZONING - Zcning)
(Previous Condition D.2 of Resolution R-03-939, Fetition DOA87-006(D}))

Building permits for the additional 2,533 square foot vehicular sales use shall be issued prior to June
20, 2012. Failure to comply with this condition shall result in the reallocation of the 64 daily trips for
the increased building area of the vehicle sales use back fo Westgate TCEA development pool. The
reallocation shall be subject to Art. 2.E. (Monitoring) of the ULDC, as amended. (DATE:
MONITORING-WCRA)

USE LIMITATIONS

1.

There shall be no outdoor loud speaker system installed upon the site. {(ONGOING: ZONING/CODE
ENF — Zoning) (Previous Condition 3.1 of Resolution R-03-239, Petition DOA87- 006(D))

USE LIMITATIONS — AUTO (VEHICLE) STORAGE AND DISPLAY AREAS

1.

Condition B.5 of Resolution R-2003-939, Petition DOA87-006(D), which currently states:

A maximum of one hundred and twenty four (124) vehicles shall be allowed on site as inventory
storage at any time. A maximum of seventy-eight (78) vehicles may be displayed on site at any time.
(ONGOING: CONDE ENF — Zoning)

Is here deleted. [REASON: The condition is no longer relevant as the vehicle type changed].

Condition S.2 of Resclution R-03-939, Petition DOA87-006(D), which currently states:
Use of the site shall be limited to the commercial sales, leasing and repair of new or used automobile
and customary accessory use. (ONGOING: ZONING/CODE ENF — Zoning)

Is hereby amended to read:

Use of the site shall include commercial retail sales/leasing and/or vehicle sales/leasing and/or
repairfservice and customary accessory uses. (ONGOING:ZONING/CODE ENF — Zoning)

All loading/unloading activities shall be limited to desighated areas within the interior of the site.
(ONGOING: CODE ENF — Zoning) (Previous Condition S.3 of Resolution R-03-939, Petition DOA87-
006(D))

There shall be no outside storage of disassembled vehicles or parts thereof, nor outdoor repair of
vehicles on site. {ONGOING: CODE ENF — Zoning) (Previous Condition B.1 of Resolution R-03-938,
Petition DOA87-006(D))

The parking of vehicles shall be limited to areas designated for storage, display, customer and
employee parking as indicated on the site plan dated April 14, 2003, unless modifications are
required to address conditions of approval. No parking of vehicles within public rights-of-way or
required landscape buffers shall be permitted. (ONGOING: CODE ENF — Zoning} (Previous
Condition B.2 of Resolution R-03-939, Petition DOAS7-006(D})

When this facility is not open, the parking area shall be locked and gated. (ONGOING: CODE ENF

G:\Westgate CRA\Private Redevelopment Projects\Boward Motorsports\DOA_expansion & parking structure\Status of
Conditions.docx

A\



Zoning) ({Previous Condition B.4 of Resofution R-03-939, Petition DOA87-006(D))

VARIANCE - TIME EXTENSION TO AUGUST 28, 2022

1.

Prior to the submittal for final approval by the Development Review Oificer (DRQ), the approved
variance(s) and any associated conditions of approval shall be reflected on the site plan. (DRO:
ZONING-Zoning)

Prior to July 1, 2010 all construction shall be initiated for the proposed improvements affected by the
variance or the site plan will become null and void. The applicant may either obtain a variance
extension or amend the site plan to comply with Code. {(DATE: MONITORING-Zoning/BofA)

The development order for this particular variance shall lapse on July 1, 2010, one (1)} year from the
approval date. The applicant may apply for an extension provided they complete the time extension
application, prior to the original Development Order (DO} expiring. (DATE: MONITORING- ZONING)
The Development Order for this non-concurrent variance shall be valid till July 1, 2009, a period of
one (1) year from the date of the Zoning Hearing. The property owner must secure a building permit
or commence development to vest the variance pursuant to ULDC Table 2.E.3-B-1. (DATE:
MONITORING — Zoning)

ZONING COMPLIANCE

1.

In granting this approval, the Board of County Commissioners relied upon the oral and written
representations of the petitioner both on the record and as part of the application process. Deviations
from or violation of these representations shall cause the approval to be presented fo the Board of
County Commissioners for review under the compliance condition of this approval. (ONGOING:
MONITORING - Zoning)

Failure to comply with any of the conditions of approval for the subject property at any time may result
n:

a. The issuance of a stop work order; the issuance of a cease and desist order; the denial or
revocation of a building permit; the denial or revocation of a Certificate of Occupancy; the
denial of any other permit, license or approval to any developer, owner, lessee, or user of the
subject property; the revocation of any other permit, license or approval from any developer,
owner, lessee, or user of the subject property; revocation of any concurrency; and/or

b. The revocation of the Official Map Amendment, Conditional Use, Requested Use,
Development Order Amendment, andfor any other zoning approval; and/or

¢. A requirement of the development to conform with the standards of the ULDC at the time of
the finding of non-compliance, or the addition or modification of conditions reasonably related
to the failure to comply with existing conditions; and/or

d. Referral to code enforcement; andfor

e. Imposition of entitiement density or intensity.

Staff may be directed by the Executive Director of PZ&B or the Code Enforcement Special Master to
schedule a Status Report before the body which approved the Conditional Use, Type Il Variance,
Development Order Amendment, and/or other zoning approval, in accordance with the provisions of
Section 2.E of the ULDC, in response to any flagrant violation and/or continued violation of any condition
of approval (ONGOING: MONITORING — Zoning)

G:\Westgate CRAPrivate Redevelopment Projects\Boward Motorsports\DOA_expansion & parking structure\Status of
Conditions.docx

A2



AUTO (VEHICLE) STORAGE AND DISPLAY AREAS

7. Condition B.5 of Resolution R-2003-939, Petition DOA87-006(D), which currently states:
A maximum of cne hundred and twenty four {124) vehicles shall be allowed on site as inventory
storage at any time. A maximum of seventy-gight (78) vehicles may be displayed on site at any time.
(ONGOING: CONDE ENF — Zoning)

Is here deleted. [REASON: The condition is no longer relevant as the vehicle type changed].
BUILDING AND SITE DESIGN

6. The maximum height for all structures, measured from finished grade to highest point, shall not
exceed thirty-five (35) feet. (BLDG PERMIT: BLDG — Zoning} (Previous Condition C.2 of Resolution
R-03-939, Petition DOA87-006(D))

7. All air conditioning and mechanical equipment shall be reof mounted and screened from view on all
sides in a manner consistent with the color, character and architectural style of the principle structure.
(BL.DG PERMIT: BLDG — Zaning) (Previous Condition C.3 of Resolution R-03-939, Petition DOAS87-
006(D).

8. All areas or receptacles for the storage and disposai of trash, garbage, recyclable material or
vegetation, such as dumpsters and trash compacters, shall not be located within twenty-five (25} feet
of a residential property line, nor be located in a Lake Worth Drainage Disfrict Easement (LWDD:
ONGOING: ZONING/CODE ENF — Zoning) (Previous Condition D.1 of Resclution R-03-239, Petition
DOA87-006(D)).

9. Prior to final Development Review Commitiee (PRC) approval, the site ptan shall be revised to delete
the Congress Avenue access point located in the 0.4 acre addition. (DRC: ZONING — Zoning)
{Previous Condition D.2 of Resolution R-03-939, Petition DOA87-006(D))

UNITY OF TITLE

1. Prior fo approval by the Site Plan Review Committee the property owner shall record a Unity of Title
on the subject property subject to approval by the County Attorney. (DRC: ZONING- Co Atfty)
(Previous Condition R.1 of Resolution R-03-839, Petition DOA87-006(D))

G:\Westgate CRA\Private Redevelopment Projects\Boward MotorsportstDOA_expansion & parking structure\Status of
. Conditions.docx

4%



"B 8d ¥ Bd 1114608 1914 GOBEE 13 'HOV38 W1vd L53M 0118 S380HII3A0 OGEZ
HIY3R WIYd 20 sl 71 ‘HIVIE WIVd 0 SLYOSSH0L0W QYYmOoNE
oV 130UVd AJAUNS AHVANNOE 30 dVIAl

g
B

TS FATNS TV

o YO0 MNGD) MWK Hivd 0 Su030d NG JiY HOQUDH MDHS SY SOKIIH NG D SIOHIAOSH TH 9 1
DL AT T HODAMA HADHS COYIE KMID TH OHY _
‘B, PICAS 50 DeuiE ¥ vemet 4N OWS HOLIMA FRONS SY OT HOUISS OS50 HLEYO IWININON U K H
DHI WUVOSSY W N0 WATD A IS) I vcan OUYR Jov Semedn R (GR Ove) 31 30 D rrsadey HusOes EZ 250 “e0uddngee
woavala Iorloee AUSIS Hwads0sd I IS YOO I 01 SMEE AOMA Raows ST o
DL~ Feung iy o Log jun

T H 35¥E DNOD M T0d 140N LN w.llu AIDELY MMy TINIEIS Dpamy B Wonemt 3Ry anemaey STRO AN 16 -1 WY WO/ SOMO0S SIUNUA DWOUTIONN V30T L QANILT ADH SYH Wil THL GUOM JOWMIE SSITHL B
o - ta) onmoa = e ! T i e bl gt o Som v YT SR S s PSSOV ok 15 1 e 81 SR Suot1s onana Ju
B [T i 10m dpeing Aoty e A I0A000A 51 INWWIHLSH 104 MO WTAITHM B0 NQIMIH HMOHS 36 IVA AGHL ION BO ABHLBNL S3MN AvELTS
aansvan n 100 % N4 wdeda Q00w = B 1 e e v e dip das 0 o Sl e i St o ..-“M._.._.ﬂu_u:xmud Y SHOUNUSIN 'AYM=0-LHOM DRUSIS AN 0L A33ONS 36 AW MOJuIM e S labaa 100005 Ju G
. Inve dlles = bg
OIS (o] £ OHATLM 40 BOUIAUNS 3HI A3 IMISHOD HILLIA ML INOHIN TSAH JNY $04 O3OMGLM JOH 51 ONT ‘WOl
Al ol AUIn v = @0 03I IHING L 20 IS0 Oy WGHTE JNSTING Dl w04 O3owdlad HI2D ST wO3uIM HAOWS ST T3NS Sru v
ovoH s = us WA uuE - O W4T WIIA 40 UHOA THL HE4 ITS b G HOIR Jar AOTHIN MIOKS SY0OIS THOS T
Wouwas = £ ToneH oS AL - & ¢ SV HO ALIV DHRTNS, WL 4O IHISHOD MILIGIM LOGHIM
L om Svw = B QLA B SHATD U0 Aivd SredS D e 430 4 SOdIi 80 Sovm LS DL SHOUTEA D SHOUGNY T
ks = =
Tta FUTIOSSY Deew Orive)
[rrep e wa A TG Tl = B 7 BTG 4o UISNO3 MU SSA] 3 UKW TOWL W0 a6 GINQOWdle 33, SN O GG
Sty Widem G LIS TS0 WRSOT ¥ K1 WIS (IS TWROLI DN JMLLmSIS T4 UROHUM GIRA 10N I
. KIS = e
I = o4 1
L3RBAS 70 1UCEH
(UGANHOR INONIE BENMEI) Termon aiwers = @ 1
FBO HUM 1HIAHON UISHOD YRS - wad 2GUINT OFIUAD = el e
LmuSa SEUMA dltve MMNOD KVIB MlYe @ GAWYEY LI - 8 | w
S0a02a ApaN03 WIVIS mYa * EELY W 0T WL TR =LA ;
w000 (¥l = ad WA nowrdsal » B u
LI /o0 VORORY A m ) 1
3008 SOH0T3H MALD = un HIW0D ALIoNd D0t = O L w
¥ awe e o oot Tas w XT £
i = o B —— :
¥
L0 el e 11 = wTwy MM = a & ¥
SSIRSNR 439N = E ToHead 3uo1d - ] ! - - T, X o ¥ ——— = ) -
IS M1 TSk - Te1 Towan enn = @ dz mprmer ‘9, = ] H : oz 35
AM3n3SYY 55300 Qe ™ A Eus = iE] A=y ‘\.\_. h g m M.M
= [}
43 ¥ O0H O = £ TIod T wivM SSou) = = ) M I vam uu g
T a
0w Ham = M T WO Y & G o .a"_n T4 E m“m mm%m
. k] Torkron v = @ ae 9 12 Rk
gl 4 T mm E )
Qung = oy Hoya vury = B #= 3 ). m ] 3 EC 7T
w0 20 w1 A5 W0 iy = @ m s i 2 R AL m wm
i B WDl K TI04 A]0d ABONGY = T o [ H o s 2 MW £ w
IMNENOMNLTNGD = R 17 WML MOIDOYE = =2 W LS + m m
ai=— B | D] T2 T T T ] [ ol S W00 sirava g o e [T =~ —— T
SNOIVIATHERY ON3S31 108 i = i - PR i L Rl N mmm sgrr
_SLHINIION UYS M O3MADSII SY ST S 30 Mg Um 4Dt 'y oy | w25 58ds
¥ NN (OGRS SY GNYI TALREOL sbig QIFRE OO Sproad UMD W Pacda fumbals bomaany 8 oF —— Tmiaa zE7H
@y . ; ¥,
LUNINISGA oS {5 , 14 . S
8GNSO ¥ SONYT B S0 HOUNGM Y HODHIA OOEETSID SY Ol ML TEZL 30ad BAEIT Yoou teedad wy B..uu.aann.n.ﬁ..eaag o i E
[l g A Bt S el B LR o s S el o uiy BT LS g g g TU m sl
i TSI ONTT TAL Y IAVE DL QY O IN00 e
s 0 comumin v o e uoe HESUIPEELET BUDTERS S AR A =} mm b
PN 03GUOS30 Q) SAL S¥ VS s 0N SN0 U000 OrYS 1 OIS0 [ £ 1 -
Sy O i “CUCSRd TTENLE oo s AN N Pty 100 Heniars OR oF ShOH u _u z mm m g m.m.ﬂ- ﬂu.
NOBOK HACHS M : >
i, s o 205 v g e s ey oy s R P o x siomn mue* H\mmﬂul, T
HTIH rals O] k . 3 —_— E , ' -
g e 10 s 0 s o e v vo BEER PRSI B AT . 1A L
1 H P N
Slwtud) 10 B RROW Kbl O vOlsd div) B Soidan] fab Plarus uae b S g 1e =
NEOT T Aoesiny oaIb “HONTAGEIE o SR IR SRS PR irgliind S M1 Hpeasiny Waay = = yn_mm d {0 i e =
THGD3H TIRVHEWIONG GNY dSHEINAG g 1 E AL | ¥ iHE & .
B m T VI3 AN K0 SIS SUOR e _T [t LI I
$C MG "I 1L W J W PRI T "GUNS) 30T WS JOI PUG ¥ RO lg H 100" RI-or-Tr v =00 20Nt il dnlerd Semasy i m ERH I = =83 ¢
ward e R e s 0 Ba0 S v e e TNy TR S O upei iAW 30 SIS LY, B VIR T e § E g <& gg8 1
NOLLRDSIa E Esnﬂ:«&.nm..ﬁ._ _ : H &t _.m 2 mm.mnm |
== % T Y-, 2 m/ H 8 2gRAsE §
Y5 £26368 »
p— = g05%3s5 o
- L L . “ H
Cedy®>— I
1l “g wmm 5
T -4
| Toos o1 ion 8 2
- VA NOLYSOT I
pmindiid —p |t S
= ",
mk Ny | i
- — = -5
I N N e 2
11::4 3
v A
AT N M S Iy 3
3 ]
AWl-30 =Ly 08
o k-] = o ; JAING IANYMNS
g _ —_—————
| ity i “Z 1 -_— - —
; |
I




1 joids sty ....Q

2SN g
HIADYNYW LD3rodd o e TIe e eocmmun st e s s | T R R e R
80DZ/60/E0 ‘OIADYY 31VT BT — Ty ey s P — D S o e s
Y- M—p— : e i PRy e =T R ; T
09 ‘F¥HXT S2A30UIAANS | [#vs [owox] o] 3 EEESEEE IR =T e — e ey gl s e .hﬁﬂ“ﬁﬂﬂeﬂmmmmﬁm Ee]a]hu.ﬂmm!...emuu_mﬂ.....m.urm
e | [T Tm T T= T 3 = - T : :
safeo CPEER
TN 2 | =8 s 3 = we || ok | e | oF | 2 s B T <A
— = 5 mx:.mnmw.m _..__E._w._.".._m._o.mom__”m Hﬁﬁ%i& T [ e o [ ] ﬂ.i..ud.qﬂ.ﬁm e TR .
-7 SNOLLN0S: e
200004351 #10HINCD St el B AL oy
L0A-YZ/S0 # LOAroHd SNV INGNHOEAST wwen o ama el
dumg Ajunu)
.m._m \ . 1O PR Y kI h Jo vy ) o
u 0c=,| :o[eog 0 : a4 [ posankir o g .
w uR[g Mg S o s 4 e o o
NOUY.LS 5wy
WW #hﬂgﬁ‘atzg.—mt Y TROMSHOD 6/08-59- H { 1E-58 SHOLLILIS
=]
3 # -.a.u o4y 'gcr o N IOVHOIS SRS Z26-00-HJ060-66 3 NOULLTS
spEs U vwl DEm  peesn o .\u.,“._auaku.u AR ; S e BRER ERR
& 3 T ] Rvearm ~ pEE . e () Y Ty i ety ay -
e g i o s e s~ ——-TRemae _™ -
zof R i _: Py R : : Tt e
T aus] _ =i E 3 : R EEE S By
£ 8% G | 90 elouroo Lesoslos vz Y i IR - SR . . e
Fi m.W ..DO... S| v1oZILE0L L9LL-PLOZ YZZ == * !, z wE 2 b H * vaw sown RSN e I
28228 o —— g5 o EEH Tt e, . FELEE 4
s Mm. an o Suawrpuaury ey AT mum sryp R e — P A - vy
m.m %5 5 =t depy noneaog _ s mmn.mmm.m\ e ,ﬂ_wmu_m%.wa.w f60005 " Ut (30:6003-HZH OB, phacirkly
LR Uxm S ruen 0 AL oo \ _wu.nm.wmﬂ STy Lng) ML 01 TEVLOY
= —- b R O LGRS N ’f . nn = PO ¥ W OHY MO Dereris ML UL A BRLGTE
g = 8 PR Sz H - T S st T
3 g et Sy J“J_\_: Wl mum;w e T St T Mkt e
NTRRE WY e O b ot e 1 RO ML
- T RN NLITRD h —s_/,\—: _u, mmuww ggﬁiﬁi!u.ﬁlﬁ?
ey e 527 oo
o e T BRI o, [T g | sl
'
° 25
T 2600 M1 D7 ) PO Y OV QsED 40 AL N b
e e ot o s b St Sy Bl
17,00 X000 01 SO0 3L T MO TGO 1 H
— TG IMUEN ALSSTOS TTd 0O L1 Jed L Ourerbraily
[ = 0 Thees s ol 2 ) o] st Y 1
oo m o HOEITIEND MG Hisk o T Sl ]
<o r— - - B .
ja~t e e P g .
fos] e 1 29 ¥ 9) QO DO E 1, i
= ﬂ %) f=H .!:ﬂ.&iﬂ!:ﬂ&z.ﬂe BE ,4
o H s D W LT LI S gk ;
O G S 4630 AR £ i G A | Si'
j=nd Y I CTVLICR] Y-S 2 TN 0N L8 W BV | 45 &
O [— W OL TAENGID WD TYLM 007 Wk BoW. L m m m
o W o e | |iEE x :
% a3 MR RO, g= u . 1w o pur W SIS I s e
o ! - e, - B F vespreoumd snvs [ Siava i HS 1es
lws] — B ' Ei ﬁ y'Soeye ] FAdDL | A¥MOLS Dl 1 ALV
= 0 & WOOUMOHE ﬂ.:..u. Ea | ! IV F ADIAEYS
e 5 N svez JETY 1o o AYO18 IND
a W 2 N — o
- Ta Elimime,. ‘Wo=fi L @0 OB v T e e AU O
= b =
5 O H
[N H. + - — —— :.
g ARSI T
[¥a] £ : o wn
2 - . R 1o
< | TinJELA T L
ot | LA T 1A m_:
I e T _ _
3 povar=i | e T, i e S z
H ) i AT V_M. %ﬁ “.»l_jﬂ ._.ll_h i
q4 F ngsasﬁ orm-ic
—_ //:ﬂsuhlaﬁ ()9t ers IELr0.008 & ﬁ
w AN I._[_T - W T 303 0GR TN Y BE . 7 1
10300 o p W I - R
P s | [T, UghiEy ’ W — VT T
SO0 AP0 B N LA . mas
we) [T — AL toiBeE2 S i =T
= smmE ||, ] SR =
[q] M MR o | ' | 3 IE - - - - = - & - - - - - 3
o R | 5% 7 | - - T ]
PRIV 2 WiSRRLON DT LwowsoweN | 1 2 Bzl H " w a
) e oopBIEE | | ! = Arons e o razeml | modiicn | T -8
q— e SEETE oaToR -9t o ! W | NOULTIOSR _ by
o o T Eon-m _ H L EH W
| i
[RGELS o z o _ &




3

HIMIA RS30021

I~ ﬂhm _ | ; O CTIT . TESRRE. mememarm sermens 3
o \ 4 varn mara el T b e LG T =T =
(SOLF-000TE 54 TPrw mposaaat 5T o ranidde cnapaady oy

Pl
MW
L L o R e L »
AEa] WG (=] or o 8 o . .. o m———— - ke s s R eand
i ey |aeoz EW | KeE %0 wiT want, W | esor [tz H“ 7y .m_ ey e e ——— m
uFj — ; . [ EL
waudolpasg TR s | sor o a%e_ PR . o el H
s i § . i
) RH y y wr | 2 | m 1 s e v .M
e = = R B N I R A T A~ e
- T e nomy TAVDH | “FZLDD [ vinry et ELLT L4 RELST 3
b R L e foom ] o Lo seorsaron sov e aste|
L ey
RINAWHINNBTY K OTIART ALAT 08T 0 | P iy i — -

I SNOLLVINDAY LNTWIOTIAZA

irmg franey

T

‘ajedisom

$110dSI0]0TA] PIBMOIY
wBd o3 [enydecaon
:
:
‘
é
5
|

“NORLYICY VMDY ALY ¥ SVH FDGM,

X LOPOCV- SRS S L 3G VI W00 UL VLS
UYL RV TYINDE AR WS U A SR TTRS O AMOUS T =

MMV NN 00 PRI 4 €30 PARIKYIR ¥ ONY ST

OB Bk L N

epLoLg

SETVS WOOUMDHS
JHSHITVIA
AHOLS OML 2 INO

e | D077 T T T wios s anigunoncy’ ....




® 0 0.6 .0 06 .0 0 06 0 06 .0 .0 .0 0 0 0 0 0
Transportation Consultants 2005 Vista Parkway, Suite 111
West Palm Beach, FL 33411-6700

(561) 296-9698

Certificate of Authorization Number: 7989

April 22, 2021

Mr. Quazi Bari, P.E.

Palm Beach County Traffic Division
2300 North Jog Road, 3™ Floor

West Palm Beach, Florida 33411-3745

Re: Broward Motorsports - #PTC21-042
Concurrency Traffic Statement

Dear Mr. Bari:

The purpose of this letter is to provide a traffic statement for the above referenced project to determine if
the proposed development meets the requirements of Article 12, Traffic Performance Standards, of the
Palm Beach County (PBC} Unified Land Development Code (ULDC). The site is located in the southwest
quadrant of the Okeechobee Boulevard and Congress Avenue intersection as shown on Attachment 1. It
is proposed to expand an existing 24,805 SF vehicle dealership by adding 5,180 SF. The existing access
points will remain. The Property Control Number is 00-43-43-30-23-001-0000.

Buildout of this project is estimated to be 2023,

Attachments 2A through 2C provide the Daily and Peak Hour trip generation comparison for the existing
and proposed use. The maximum net peak hour trip generation is 11 trips. Because the project
generates fewer than 21 peak hour trips, a traffic study is not required. The project traffic has an
insignificant impact on area roadways. Therefore the proposed project is in compliance with Palm Beach
County Traffic Performance Standards.

Driveway volumes for the proposed project are provided on Attachment 3.

Please contact me by phone or at atroutman@pindertroutman.com if you need any additional
information or have any questions.

Sincerely,
S, Digitally signed by
Sof Nodsaos %% Andrea M Troutman
iy, sweor A8 Date: 2021.04.22
2 RO

e Aanple ST
S ion AL TN 09:33:41 -04'00'

LTIt

Andrea M. Troutman, P.E.
President

Attachments

This item has been electronically signed and sealed by Andrea M. Troutman, P.E. on 4/22/21 using a Digital Signature. Printed
copies of this document are not considered sighed and sealed and the sighature must be verified on any electronic copies.

Pinder Troutman Consulting, InA‘I




Attachment 1 Project Location

Yo

W
o \s‘?
g

L

T

R0

W

i
f (}‘_. '3'—

!

) -»._"
i

#35,

LN
[ECRIA
B

N
AT
RLI;

elvecer
ot

e
AN

April 20, 2021

Broward Motorsports




Attachment 2A
Broward Motorsports

Daily Trip Generation Comparison

4/22/2021
Tripgen 21-042 4-22-21

Existing
ITE New
Land Use Intensity Code | Trip Generation Rate (1) | Total Trips | Pass-by Trips (1) Trips
Vehicle Sales & Service 24,805 SF 840 27.84 /1,000 SF 691 104 15.0% 587
TOTALS 691 104 587
Proposed
ITE New
Land Use Intensity Code| Trip Generation Rate (1) | Total Trips | Pass-by Trips (1) Trips
Vehicle Sales & Service 29,985 SF 840 27.84 /1,000 5F 835 125] 15.0% 710
TOTALS 835 125 710
| Net New Trips]| 123 |

{1) Source: Palm Beach County and ITE, Trip Generation, 10th Edition.

40



Attachment 2B
Broward Motorsports

AM Peak Hour Trip Generation Comparison

4/22/2021

Tripgen 21-042 4-22-21

Existing
ITE Total Trips Pass-by New Trips
Land Use Intensity Code Trip Generation Rate (1) In | Out| Total | Trips (1) In | Out | Total
Vehicle Sales & Service 24,805 SF 840 1.87 /1,000 SF (73/27) 34| 12 46 7 15%] 29| 10 39
TOTALS 341 12 46 7 29| 10 39
Propased
ITE Total Trips Pass-by New Trips
Land Use Intensity Code Trip Generation Rate (1) In | Out| Total | Trips (1) In | Out| Total
Vehicle Sales & Service 29,985 SF 840 1.87 /1,000 SF (73/27) 411 15 56 8 15%) 35| 13 48
TOTALS 411 15 56 8 35| 13 48
NetNewTrips| 6| 3| 9]

(1) Source: Palm Beach County and ITE, Trip Generation, 10th Edition,




Attachment 2C
Broward Motorsports

PM Peak Hour Trip Generation Comparison

4/22/2021

Tripgen 21-042 4-22-21

Existing
ITE Total Trips Pass-by New Trips
Land Use Intensity Code Trip Generation Rate (1) in | Out| Total| Trips (1) In { Qut| Total
Vehicle Sales & Service 24,805 SF 840 2.43 /1,000 SF (40/60) 24| 36| 60 9 15%) 20] 31 51
TOTALS . 24 36| 60 9 20| 3 51
Proposed
ITE Total Trips Pass-by New Trips
Land Use Intensity Code Trip Generation Rate (1) In | Qut| Total Trips (1) in | Out | Total
Vehicle Sales & Service 29,985 SF 840 2.43 /1,000 SF (40/60) 29| 44 73 11 15%| 25| 37 62
TOTALS 29| 44| 73| 1 25) 37| 62
NetNewTrips] 5] 6] 11}

(1) Source: Palm Beach County and ITE, Trip Generation, 10th Editicn.

5)



N.T.S.

OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD

LEGEND

XX - AM PEAK HOUR
XX) -PM PEAK HOUR
XXX -ADT

11}

1{1)

21 (14) =
Y om bla
0 () ~
16 418
@‘A ul
o SITE E
ﬂ 7 (20)
Y1
0 (0)
O
25
5]
Q
(WK} wl
- 2
Z 4
s s
< z
wr 175
= b
< a4
2 2
= 0
“ O

4/20{21
21-042

BROWARD MOTORSPORTS

ATTACHMENT 3

PROJECT DRIVEWAY VOLUMES

PTC

5L



A Higher Standard of Exceilence =

engenuity

ENGINEERS + SURVEYORS » GIS MAPPERS group InC-

DRAINAGE STATEMENT
for
Proposed Building Modifications for Broward Motorsporis
Palm Beach County, FL
Engenuity Group, Inc. Project No. 20079.01

©

Existing Conditions:

The existing site is approximately 3.87 acres located af the southwest corner of Okeechobee
Blvd. and Congress Ave. in Palm Beach County within Section 30, Township 43 South, and Range
43 East, with Parcel Number 00-43-43-30-03-067-0011, in Palm Beach County, FL.

The site is cumrently developed with existing commerciat buildings, several associated buildings
and parking areas. The existing topography of the site is reasonably flat and the survey indicates
elevations ranging from approximately 14.8 ft NAVD fo 18.54 ft NAVD. The site is located with the
C-51 Basin and ultimately discharges into the Lake Worth Drainage District (LWDD) E-3-1/2 Canal.
The property is within the boundary of the existing South Florida Water Management District
(SFWMD) permit No. 50-06559-P, There is no offsite historical drainage flow through the site.
Porfions of the site are withing the FEMA Food hazard area AE, BFE=11.9 ft NAVD.

Proposed Improvements:

The proposed site improvements consist of new dedlership showrooms. The existing
showroom/sales/office building is 24,805 s.f with new showroom areas of 2,949 s.f. and 2,251 s.f.
The existing storm drainage system consists of a network of inferconnected drainage pipes and
catch basins, all leading to an existing dry detention area on the south side of the property, prior
to discharging through the existing conirol structure for legal positive outfall into the LWDD E-3-
1/2 Canal. The subject site is included in the existing SFWMD permit #50-06559-P, and any
proposed improvements will be in compliance with the originally permitted system. The drainage
system design will include some impervious area grading to match the building expansion and
meet the requirements of all appropriate permitting agencies, and the SFWMD C-51 Basin.

Keith B. Jackson, P.E. State of Florida, Professional Keith 8 Jackson Eé?tlltc\al!j‘lyﬁgl?sii ng
. ; . , P.E.

Engineer, License No. 37289
. . . P.E.(FlaReg# (FlaReg#37289)
This item has been electronically signed and sealed

by Keith B. Jockson, PE, on 04/20/2021 using a SHA 37289) Date: 2021.04.20
authentication code. 19:00:30-04'00
Printed copies of this document are not considered

signed and sealed and the SHA authentication Keith B. Jackson, P.E.

Code must be verified on any electronic copies. EL License #37289

Certificate of Authorization #7095

2021 04-20 DRAINAGE STMT
Project No. 20079.01

1280 North Congress Avenue, Suite 101
West Palm Beach, Florida 33409

54



HW «3};:

WESTGATEBELVEDERE HOMES

COVULINIT Y BEGEE TR AGER Y |

21-01 Round of ULDC Amendments
ent Timeline

BCC Initiation & draft due to Zoning November 25, 2020

Zoning & Agencies Round Tables April 15 & 16, 2021

Land Development Regulations Advisory Board (LDRB} Meeting | April 28, 2021

BCC Request for Permission to Advertise June 24, 2021

BCC 1% Reading July 22, 2021

BCC 2™ Reading & Adoption August 26, 2021

Figure 3.B.14.C ~ Map of WCRAQ Boundaries and Sub-areas

e T = = . TN E
£ o mEomewi % s %
. : 1 - ] H .
= e . : ’
% e 2 lj i L
s ‘ ¢ i H .
ains e T - CIE R0 Iy ' N _
— m e e
R NPl i — T e
- - L ] mﬁ-‘.— "
;1 ooTommmon_(oeemeneo o e e s
et L% 3
Hi [ o woapeeay ST - —— =
b . = SO, Y ] ]
T T L e it T Al et Pt ! | K e s 4
. ] by - . omre R AT T
T ST, [T . e e .
pre R L U b 2 i
7 u/---zr-*--* et X G e et e -_........L._ml‘ IR
[l J = : 5 E ' 1
e 5 3 | :
_ - Ly :
. — é; E R F
~s « : I ®e L3 3 l
- B —1 tig : ; ;
gy N A w1 < iy ' E t
-~.. . =-=l'-’”--v-- ’ 'ﬂ"m&n-_.._..., i
g - P
,kﬁj-'gk ' i t
- H . [} !
g il e |
[ e g ™ i '1 3 ‘
> ; i
i F
I
1
]
- . .
i !
I !
) ; )
Fan
. : E !
. - = :
e i
= _ = H
E kN ~ - . 1
=z = _ s o i i
- Fu... . R - t b e 1 e - _ JE— S P T . ———— e i
WESTGATE CRA BOUNDARIES AND SUIB-AREAS {
o e artaEaenane Zacat R e ]l
agred Lzt = _— . £ T L D i A e et 8 |
33 ot 20 gz e REacard 3rd S o 2 s Tos S Jutatora ‘
e P oo

Wesigate CRA Board Meeting
May 10, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 » West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

A



Summary of Proposed WCRAQ Amendments

P ds Art, 3.B.14.E, W e Regulations and Table

» Renames Table 3.B.14.E to “Min/Max Residential and Non-Residential Uses” instead of “Mixed
Use” to clarify that the function of the table is to determine where residential or non-residential
development, specific to Sub-area and by required percentage of GFA, is allowed.

» Relocates Table 3.B.14.E, footnote #4 which references where multifamily is permitted by
number of units and Sub-area to the WCRAQ Sub-area use regulations table where it is better
suited.

* Amends Table 3.B.14.E, WCRAO Sub-area Use Regulations by introducing an alternative SF
housing type to allow smaller dwellings that can be built on 25’ wide lots. This new SF model,
named “South Westgate Estates Single Family Alternative” will only be allowed in the NRM Sub-
area, an area of the overlay which generally corresponds to original South Westgate Estates
subdivision plat. This alternative housing type differs from cottage homes in that there is no
1,000 sf size cap; unit size is determined by setbacks and building coverage. Also differs from the
standard SF mode! which is allowed in the NR and NRM Sub-areas on 50" wide lots.

= Correct scriveners error in Table 3.B.14.E, WCRAO Sub-area Use Regulations, to clarify that Gas
and Fuel Sales in the Ul Sub-area is subject to the use regulations of the zoning district since the
corresponding cell is now blank forcing the code to remain silent.

art 2 S WCRAQ Property Deve egulations and Table

=  Most amendments in Part 2 are clarify intent, are corrective, or are for consistency with other
sections of the overlay. ’

= Restate intent and applicability of the section by adding clarifying language: Table 3.B.14.F,
WCRAO Non-Residential and Mixed Use Sub-area PDRs applies to all non-residential and mixed
use development according to Sub-area; and, Table 3.B.14.F, WCRAO Residential Sub-area PDRs
applies to residential-only uses across sub-areas as permitted.

= Within Table 3.B.14.F — WCRAOQ Non-Residential and Mixed Use PDRS:
* Reiterate that PDRs for SF development in the NR Sub-area do not apply (N/A) in this
table. PDRs for SF development area found the Residential PDR table
»  Strike out “build to fine” in the row header since not all Sub-areas require a build to line
but instead minimum front setback
» Clarify that build to line standards apply to ali development in the UG Sub-area not only
commercial or mixed use projects

» Delete “build to line 10-25"” in the UH Sub-area and instead add a “min. 10" front setback
to better allow for front and side setback flexibility for existing smalier, sub-standard sites

| 2
Waeslgate CRA Board Meeting
May 10, 202

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org



A

WESTGATERELY

QORI HEDE

along Okeechobee Blvd. between Shawnee and Indian, while ensuring existing larger
development setback a minimum of 50’ on Okeechobee Blvd. and Military Trail remains
conforming

Add an applicability and clarification note to maximum allowable stories/height to exempt
buildings over 35’ from the requirements cf 3.D.1.E.2 in standard code which states that a
structure must be set back an additional foot for every foat of height over 35", Applying
this provision would conflict with form based code requirements for build to line and
frontage.

= Within Table 3.B.14.F - WCRAQ Residential Sub-area PDRs:

Remove “Sub-area” from the table title since residential PDRs are by residential use type
not be Sub-area specifically :

Add “Build to Line” alongside setbacks in the table row heading as well as within cells
where the BTL is required for consistency with the Non-Residential and Mixed Use PDR
table

Include PDRs for the South Westgate Estates Single Family Alternative housing type. PDRs
closely mirror Cottage Home provisions by providing reduced front and side setbacks, but
differs in allowing for a larger dwelling unit by building coverage maximum

Amend Cottage Home PDRs fo better conform to the Cottage Homes use type in Art. 4.
Adds a note to reiterate that Cottage Homes in the WCRAO must conform to the 1,000 sf.
size limitation

Clarify that accessory structures are no permiited to exceed 2 stories in height

Add a note to South Westgate Estates Single Family Alternative which allows the building
coverage to increase by up to 10% to accommodate covered front porches and rear
patios, as well as a provision maximizing the size of attached garages to 15% of building
coverage

P ends Art. 3.B.14.G, WCRAD S nt Standards Table

= Part 3 corrects a few more minor scriveners’ errors where table cells have been left blank or
note numbers have been incorrectly referenced

|3

Westgate CRA Board Meeting

May 10, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 » 561.640.8181 » www.westgatecra.org

Slo



—

—
OO UM w N

11
12

Part 1.

EXHIBIT B

ARTICLE 3 - OVERLAYS AND ZONING DISTRICTS
WCRAO USE REGULATIONS, PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

REGULATIONS, AND SUPPLEMENTARY STANDARDS

CR-2021-0026
(Updated 04/16/2021)

ULDC Art 3.B.14.E, Overlays and Zoning Districts, Overlays, WCRAQC, Westgate

Community Redevelopment Area Overlay, Use Regulations (pages 45 and 46 of 213,

Supplement 29), is hereby amended as follows:

Reason for amendments: [Westgate Community Redevelopment Agency]

1.

Rename and update references of Table 3.B.14.E, WCRAO Mixed Use to Table 3.B.14.E,
Minimum/Maximum Residential and Non-Residential Uses, to clarify that the function of the Table is
to determine, specific to Sub-areas, where mixed use is generally permitted or prohibited. The current
name of the Table is somewhat misleading since it does serve a broader purpose, which is also to
make clear where and by required percentage of gross floor area, residentiai-only and/or non-
residential projects are allowed across WCRAQO Sub-areas.

Relocate Note #4 in Table 3.B.14.E, WCRAO Mixed Use to Table 3.B.14.E, WCRAO Sub-area Use
Regulations. Language specific to where Multifamily and Townhoime housing types are permitted by
number of units by Sub-area is better suited to be located within the Sub-area use regulations table
rather than Table 3.B.14.E, Mixed Use,

Amend Table 3.B.14.E, WCRAQ Sub-area Use Regulations to introduce an alternative Single Family
housing type which allows smaller Single Family dweliings to be built on lots with a 25-foot width or
frontage. This alternative Single Family model will only be allowed in the NRM Sub-area which
encompasses South Westgate Estates; an area of the Overlay that historically platted on 25-foot-
wide by 115-foot-deep lots. The NRM Sub-area is intended {o encourage iow intensity neighborhood
mixed use, Single Family, Townhouse, and low density Multifamily. By allowing Single Family
dwellings on 25-foot-wide lots, workforce housing unit production is anticipated to increase by
providing developers with a viable “for-sale” alternative, while also stabilizing the community through
home ownership, and de-incentivizing the proliferation of duplex and triplex rental development.

Amend Table 3.B.14.E, WCRAQ Sub-area Use Regulations to clarify that the Gas and Fuel Sales,
Retail use in the Ul Sub-area is subject to the use regulations of the zoning district, correcting a
scrivener's error as the corresponding cell is currently |eft blank, therefore forcing the Code to remain
sitent.

CHAPTEREB OVERLAYS

Section 14 WCRAO, Westgate Community Redevelopment Area Overlay

E. Use Regulations
1. Mixed Use

In the WCRAQ, mixed use means the combination of residential and one or more non-
residential uses that are functionally integrated. Mixed use may be required or permitted in
commercial districts that have a commercial with underlying residential FLU designation, as
indicated in Table 3.B.14.E, WCRAQO Mixed-UseMinimum/Maximum Residential and_Non-

Residential Uses. [Ord. 2006-004]

G:\Westgate CRAWLDC Amendments\21-01\Exh, B - CR-2021-0026 Art. 3, WCRAO Use Regulations, Property Development
Regulations, and Supplementary Standards_final LDRAB.docx

Notes:
Underlined indicates new text.

Stricken indicates text to be deleted. Siricken-andtalicized means text to be tofally or partially relocated.

If being relocated destination is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated to: ].
ftalicized indicates text to be relocated. Source is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated from: ].
.... A series of four bolded ellipses indicates language omitted to save space.

LDRAB Meeting April 28, 2021 Page 1

5.



o2 ) BN S 4% I (N I

EXHIBIT B

ARTICLE 3 -~ OVERLAYS AND ZONING DISTRICTS
WCRAO USE REGULATIONS, PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

REGULATIONS, AND SUPPLEMENTARY STANDARDS
CR-2021-0026
{Updated 04/16/2021)

Table 3.B.14.E - WCRAO Mmed—UseMlmmumIMammum Re51dent|al and Non-Remdentlal Uses

Sub-areas - .. || NR- CONRMY ‘NG SNC < UH 1]
Mixed Use 2) .| Pronibited Pe(q;‘('attfd P‘?ﬁ';'('“)ed P‘ig‘)‘é‘fd Permitted-(4) | Permitted4) | Prohibited
g ’?"s"_""’“ﬂa' NIA 50% 50% 0% 0% 0% N/A
ﬂ:: R“'d.""t'a' A na 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% N/A
Min. Non- -

Rosidontial Use. N/A 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% N/A
Max. Non-" @ .

Romidontial Use. N/A 50% 50% 100% 100% 100% N/A
[Ord: 2006- 004] [Ord 2017- 001] [Ord. 2075-031)] [Ord. 2018-002] (Ord. 2020-001] _

Notes:"

Non resw!entlal uses on parcels that have a commercnal FLU W|th under[ymg remdentnal deS|gnat|on approved as part of F’Ian
Amendment Round 2005-01, Ord. No. 2005-032, shall be permitted in in the NRM and NG Sub-areas. Non-residentiat uses
1, shall only be permitted if all permitted residential density is utilized, but in no case shall it be less than one unit. Density shall
be caleulated meeting the requirements of FLUE Table 2.2.1-g.1, and other related Policies of the Plan. [Ord. 2006-004] [Ord.
2015-031] [Ord. 2018-002] [Ord. 2019-005] [Ord. 2020-001]

Minimum and maximum percentages for residential and non-residential uses are calculated by dividing the total GFA for either]
use (residential OR non-residential) type by the total GFA (residential AND non-residential). Projects that vertically integrate a
2. minimum of 20 percent of the site's approved (includes allowed density and any density bonus units) residential density with
commercial uses may be allowed to utilize up to 100 percent of both the site's commercial intensity and residential density,
[Ord. 2006-004] [Ord. 2020-001]

Residential-only developments are permitted within the NC, NRM, and NG Sub-areas. [Ord. 2015-031] [Ord. 2018-002] [Ord.

* |2020-001]
" ; j
[Relocated to Tabla 3 B 14, E WCRAO Sub~area Use Regulatlons]
2. Sub-area Use Regulations
a. Use Regulations
In addition to the requirements of Art. 4.B, Use Classification, the following uses shall be
prohibited or permitted in the WCRAQ Sub-areas: [Ord. 2006-004]
-__Table 3.B.14.E — WCRAO Sub-area Use Regulations

ol T e e T e T e e e T Supplementary
Sob-areas,. - - 0 T e Y NR | NRML | NG NC UG | UH |- U | Usa Standards#
Coa o D e T T “. ... Residential Uses =~ - . Lot ] .
Single Family N A P P X X X X X 4.B.1.C.5
South-_ Wastgate. 'Estates' ‘Sinqlé . Familyl
}HE.';“.QL"’J - - & P X X X X X 4.B.1.C.5
Cottage Home ~ Smgla Unlt ona Slngle Lot X P X X X X X 4B1.C2
Dcl?gﬁga Home - MulthIe Units oiv a Slngle Lot X p P X X X X 4BA.C.2
Zero Lot Line (ZLL) X X X X X X X 4.B.1.C.7
Multifamily (MF) X |PB) PGB PGB [PB PGB | X 4B8.1.C.4

G:\Westgate CRAWLDC Amendments\21-01\Exh. B - CR-2021-0026 Art. 3, WCRAQO Use Regulations, Property Development
Regulations, and Supplementary Standards _final LDRAB.doex

Notes:

Underlined indicates new text.

Stricken indicates text to be deleted. Sirsken-and-talieized means text to be fotally or partially relocated.
If being relocated destination is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated to: ].

ftalicized indicates text to be relocated. Source is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated from: J.

.... A series of four bolded ellipses indicates language omitted to save space.

LDRAB Meeting April 28, 2021 Page 2

0B




EXHIBIT B

ARTICLE 3 -~ OVERLAYS AND ZONING DISTRICTS
WCRAO USE REGULATIONS, PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

REGULATIONS, AND SUPPLEMENTARY STANDARDS
CR-2021-0026
(Updated 04/16/2021)

Townhouse X [PB [PB PG |[PGB PGB | X |  4BA.CE
' Commercial Uses

X X 4.B.2.C.1

Adult Entertainment (3) X X X X X
Car Wash : X X X X ) - - 4B.2.C.4
||( nvenience Store - X X X X X - - 4B.2.C.7
Electric Vehicla Charging Statlon Faclllty X -(8) 1 -(8) | -(8) ! -(8) ! -(8) - 4.8.2.C.10
|[Employment Agencies (6) X X X X X - - 4.8.2.C.26
Gas and Fuel Sales, Retail X X X X X - - 4.B.2.C.16
Landscape Service X X X X X X - 4.8.2.C.21
Parking, Commercial (9)- " X X X X X X X 4,B.2.C.27
Repair and Maintenance, Heavy ~ X X X X - - - 4.B.2.C.30
Repair and Maintenance, Light X X X X - - - 4.8.2.C.31
[self-Service Storage; Limited Accass X X X X - - - 4B.2.C.37
ISelf-Sarvice Storage, Multi- Access.- X X X X X X - 4.B.2.C.37
[Wehicle Sales and -Rental, Light : . X X X X - - - 4.B.2.C.41
Vehicle.or: Equlpment Sales and Rental Heavy X X X X - - - 4.B.2.C.40
WorkiLive Space RN X @ | @ @ [ @ [ @ X 4.8.2.C.44
. | oo Industrial Uses T S
Ofﬂce Warehousa ol Lo X X X X AN [AM - 4.B.5.C.17
Contractor. Storage Yard S - - - - - - A 4.B.5.C.1
Distribution Facility X X X X X A D 4.B.5.C.3
Manufacturing and Processmg X X X X X A D 4B.5.C8
Warahouse ™ ' - X X X X X A D 4.B.5.C.17
Wholesaling. - X X X X X A D 4.8.5.C.18

[Ord. 2006-004] [Ord. 2007—013] [Ord 2009 040] [Ord. 2010-022] [Ord. 2011-016] [Ord. 2012-007] [Ord. 2017-002] [Ord. 2017-

007] [Ord. 2018-002] [Ord 2018 018] [Ord 2020 001] [Ord 2021 006]

Notes:: ' ‘ !

1. Ltm:ted to Iots W|th a CH FLU de5|gnat|on and correspondlng zoning distnct [Ord 2006-004] [Ord 2018-002}

A number in the Supplementary Use Standards # column refers to Art. 4.B, Use Classification, which are applicable to the use.

[Ord. 2006-004] [Ord. 2020-001]

Adult Entertainment shall also be prohibited as an accessory use to other principal uses within the Sub-areas, [Ord. 2007-013]

Limited to lots with a CH or CL FLU designation and corresponding zoning district. Work/Live Space shall be Permitted by Right|

in all Sub-areas except the NR and Ul. [Ord. 2007-013] [Ord. 2020-001]

Multifamily and Townhouse units may be Pemmitted by Right in non-residential districts where mixed use is permitted in

accordance with Table 3.B.14.E. WCRAQO Mixed UseMinimum/Maximum Residential and Non-Residential Uses. Within the NC,

UG, and UH Sub-areas, residential-only Mufiifamily and Townhouse developments with five dwelling units or more shall be

permitted; residential-only developments with under five units shall not be permitted. [Relocated from: Table 3.B.14.E,

WCRAO Mixed Use] [Ord. 2017-002] [Ord. 2020-001]

6.  [Employment Agencles as contained In Art. 4, Use Regulations under Office, Business or Professional. fOrd. 2017-007]

[7.__[Limited to lots which front Ckeechobee Boulevard and consistent with Art. 11.E.2.A.4.b, Non-Residential Lots. [Ord. 20:21-006]|

(8. [Permitted in the NRM, NG, NC, UG, and UH Sub-areas as an accessory use. [Ord. 2021-006]

|9 Commercial Parking use on surface lots is prohibited in all Sub-areas. Commercial Parking use in structured parking garages
" |is pemnitted in the UG, UH, and Ul Sub-areas subject to Class A Conditional Use approval. [Ord. 2021-006]

LR

n

X |Prohihited in Sub-area

- Subject to Use Regulations of zoning district

P  |Permitted by Right in Sub-area [Ord. 2007-013] [Ord. 2009-040] [Ord. 2020-001]
[l [Permitted by DRO approval [Ord. 2021-006]

lla~ [Class A Conditionat Use [Ord. 2017-007]

G:'\Woestgate CRAWLDC Amendmentsi21-01\Exh. B - CR-2021-0026 Art. 3, WCRAQ Use Regulations, Praperty Development
Regulations, and Supplementary Standards_final LDRAB.docx

Notes:

Underlined indicates new text.

Stricken indicates text to be deleted. Stricken-and-talicized means text to be totally or partially relocated.
If being relocated destination is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated to: ].

ftalicized indicates text to be relocated. Source is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated from: ].

.... A series of four bolded sllipses indicates language omitted to save space.

LDRAB Meeting April 28, 2021 Page 3

53



EXHIBIT B

ARTICLE 3 — OVERLAYS AND ZONING DISTRICTS
WCRAO USE REGULATIONS, PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

REGULATIONS, AND SUPPLEMENTARY STANDARDS
CR-2021-0026
(Updated 04/16/2021)

Part 2. Art 3.B.14.F, Overlays and Zoning Districts, Overlays, WCRAO, Westgate Community
Redevelopment Area Overlay, Property Development Regulaticns {PDRs) (pages 47-55
of 213, Supplement 29), is herehy amended as follows:

Reason for amendments: [Westgate Community Redevelopment Agency]

1. Restate the inient and applicability of Art. 3.B.14.F, Property Development Regulations {(PDRs),
where development in the WCRAO shall be in compliance with the Standard Zoning District, unless
otherwise stated in Table 3.B.14.F, WCRAO Non-Residential and Mixed Use Sub-area PDRs which
applies to all non-residential uses and mixed use developments according Sub-area, and/or Table
3.B.14.F, WCRAO Residential Sub-area PDRs which applies to residential-only uses across Sub-
areas, as permitted.

2. Clarify in Table 3.B.14.F, WCRAO Non-Residential and Mixed Use Sub-area PDRs that PDRs for
Single Family development in the NR Sub-area do not apply in this Table, rather 1o reiterate Note
#1, PDRs for Single Family in the NR Sub-area are located in and must comply with Table 3.B.14.F,
WCRAO Residential Sub-area PDRs.

3. Amend Table 3.B.14.F, WCRAQC Non-Residential and Mixed Use Sub-area PDRs by striking out
“Build-to-Line” in the row Header for front setbacks/build-to-line for internal consistency since not all
Sub-areas require a front or side street build-to-line.

4, Amend Table 3.B.14.F, WCRAO Non-Residential and Mixed Use Sub-area PDRs for the UG Sub-
area for front or side street build-to-line standards by striking out applicability to only commercial and
mixed use projects. The provision is intended to be applied to all development in the UG Sub-area
including residential or industrial, where allowed.

5. Amend Table 3.B.14.F, WCRAO Non-Residential and Mixed Use Sub-area PDRs for the UH Sub-
area front or side street build-to-line. ULDC Amendment Round 2020-02 introduced a 10 to 25-foot
front/side street build-to-line in the UH Sub-area where previously the cell contents defaulted by way
of a “-“ to standard Code for the zoning district. The provision was meant to alleviate non-conformities
on sub-standard shallow sites along Okeechobee Boulevard between Suwanee Drive and Indian
Road that back on to Shawnee Avenue, and to aliow those sites to redevelop without the need for
multiple Variances. The unintended consequence is that the provision now creates non-conformities
on sites that were developed to CG Zening District PDRs with a minimum 50-foot front setback. This
amendment deletes “Build-to-Line” and includes “Min. 10” to allow better front and side street
setback flexibility for those sub-standard Okeechobee Blvd. sites, while ensuring existing larger scale
development in the Sub-area remains conforming.

6. Clarify in Table 3.B.14.F, WCRAO Non-Residential and Mixed Use Sub-area PDRs that minimum
frontage/lot width, minimum lot depth, minimum rear sethack, and minimum building frontage for the
NR Sub-area are not applicable, as this Table is to be utilized for non-residential and mixed use
development. PDRs for Single Famlly dwellings are found in Table 3.B.14.F, WCRAQ Residential
Sub-area PDRs.

G:\Westgate CRAWLDC Amendments\21-01\Exh. B - CR-2021-0026 Art. 3, WCRAO Use Regulations, Property Development
Regulations, and Supplementary Standards_final LDRAB.doex

Notes:
Underlined indicates new text.
Stricken indicates text to be deleted. Stricken-and-italisized means text to be totally o partially relocated.
If being relocated destination is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated to: ].
italicized indicates text to be relocated. Source is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated from: ].
.. A series of four bolded ellipses indicates language omitted to save space.

LDRAB Meeting April 28, 2021 Page 4

O



EXHIBIT B

ARTICLE 3 — OVERLAYS AND ZONING DISTRICTS
WCRAO USE REGULATIONS, PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

REGULATIONS, AND SUPPLEMENTARY STANDARDS
CR-2021-0026
(Updated 04/16/2021)

Reason for amendments: [Wesigate Community Redevelopment Agency]

7. Amend Table 3.B.14.F, WCRAQ Non-Residential and Mixed Use Sub-area PDRs to add an
applicability and clarification Note to maximum allowable stories/height. Provisions allowing for
added height were adopted info the WCRAQ in 2006, along with other form-based code standards,
with the intent of encouraging an urban built form, building presence and massing where the building
footprint remains on the front build-to-line, as well as on side and rear setback lines. Building heights
are permitted to reach up to 240 feet in the UG Sub-area, and up to 120 feet in the UH Sub-area.
Functionally and practically, most sites in the WCRAOQ could not accommodate utilizing the ULDC
over 35 feet one foot fo one foot height standard due to a typical lot size that is smaller, especially if
applied alongside provisions allowing greater intensities and densities. The utilization of this height
standard would conflict with and confound applicability of WCRAO requirements for front and side
street build lines and frontage. ,

8. Rename and update references of Table 3.B.14.F, WCRAO Residential Sub-area PDRs to Table
3.B.14.F, WCRAOQO Residential PDRs, removing “Sub-area” from the Title, since the former is
confusing and implicates residential PDRs are by Sub-area when in fact they are by residential use
type.

9. Amend Table 3.B.14.F, WCRAQ Residential Sub-area PDRs by adding "Build-to-Line" to the Table
Sub-Heading and within the Table cells where a build-to-line applies to Townhouse, MF less than
five units, and MF more than five units, for consistency with Table 3.B.14.F, WCRAQ Non-Residential
and Mixed Use Sub-area PDRs.

10. Amend Table 3.B.14.F, WCRAQO Residential Sub-area PDRs to add property development
regulations for the South Westgate Estates Single Family Alternative housing type. The intent is to
allow a smaller Single Family Home fo be built on 25-foot-wide lots in the NRM Sub-area of the
WCRAQO which otherwise could not be achieved utilizing the minimum lot width standard for Single
Family in the WCRAQO or the provisions for Cottage Homes — Single Unit on a Single Lot since the
Cottage Home use type is restricted to a dwelling size of 1,000 square feet. PDRs closely mirrer
those for Cottage Homes — Single Unit on a Single Lot by providing for reduced front, side street,
and side setbacks, but differ in minimum lot depth and a larger building coverage maximum.

11. Amend Table 3.B.14.F, WCRAOQO Residential Sub-area PDRs Coftage Home — Singie Unit on a Single
Lot residential use type PDRs for maximum building coverage, minimum side, and rear setbacks to
better conform to the intent of cottage homes defined by the Article 4 use type. Add a Table Note to
reiterate that Cottage Homes must conform to the maximum size limitation of 1,000 square feet per
Art. 4.B.1.C.2, Cottage Home.

12. Clarify in Table 3.B.14.F, WCRAQ Residential Sub-area PDRs that accessory structures are not
permitted to exceed two stories In height by adding "Max.”, not be two stories in height.

13. Amend Table 3.B.14.F, WCRAO Residential Sub-area PDRs for South Westgate Estates Single
Family Alternative to add a Note allowing maximum building coverage to increase up to 10 percent
for the construction of covered or solid roof porches and patios consistent with other provisions in
the Planned Development District (PDD) Code allowing a 10 percent increase in building coverage
for 8F and ZL1L homes, and, to allow single car attached garages to be constructed within the
maximum building coverage, not fo exceed 15 percent of the maximum.

G:Westgate CRAWULDC Amendments\21-01\Exh. B - CR-2021-0026 Art. 3, WCRAQO Use Regulations, Property Development
_Regulaticns, and Supplementary Standards_final LORAB.docx

Notes:

Underlined indicates new text.

Siricken indicates text to be deleled. Sirckenanditalicized means text to be totally or partiaily relocated.
If being relocated destination is nofed in bolded brackets [Relocated to: ].

ftalicized indicates text to be relocated. Source is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated from: ].

.... A series of four bolded ellipses indicates language omitted to save space.

LDRAB Meeting April 28, 2021 Page 5

(ol



EXHIBIT B

ARTICLE 3 — OVERLAYS AND ZONING DISTRICTS
WCRAO USE REGULATIONS, PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

REGULATIONS, AND SUPPLEMENTARY STANDARDS
CR-2021-0026
(Updated 04/16/2021)

CHAPTER B OVERLAYS

Section 14 WCRAO, Westgate Community Redevelopment Area Overlay

F. Property Development Regulations (PDRs)
1. Sub-area PDRs

In order to implement the form based code outlined in the WCRA Plan, additional PDRs are
established for the seven Sub-areas. Development in the WCRAO shall be in compliance with
all Standard Zoning District, PDD, or TDD PDRs, unless specified otherwise in Table 3.B.14.F,
WCRAO Non-Residential and Mixed Use Sub-area PDRs-and, Residential-only development
in the WCRAO shall comply with Table 3.B.14.F, WCRAOQO Residential-Sub-area PDRs for the
applicable residential use type. Accessory uses and structures shall be in accordance with Art.
5.B.1, Accessory Uses and Structures, unless stated otherwise. [Ord. 2006-004] [Ord. 2008-
003] [Ord. 2017-007] [Ord. 2019-005] [Ord. 2020-001]

Table 3.B.14.F - WCRAO Non-Residential and Mixed Use Sub-area PDRs

ﬂSub -areas [ || NR(1) | NRM:-' I SN T S Y TR R R T
iL ;';= R Dim‘an’sfoﬁs.(Z),:‘,; A R L s
HMIn FrontagaiLotW.dth - - 75 (4 75' (4) 100’ 100" {5} -
[Min. Lot Depth - B - - 100° 100' 100° 100°
Max Bullding Covarage N/A 40% 40% 40% (3) 40% (3) 40% (3) 5% (3)
: . ST . 'Build-to-Line/Setbacks.- " R
Eront. or .Side ‘Build-to-Line | Build-to-Line | Build-to-Line — Buit-to-Lins Build-to- BulaoLine
Build-to-Line (10) NAA — 15 —15' 10 - SMY LireMin. 10- | — C/IND:
10-25 25 10-25
Min. Side N/A 10' (8) 10' (6) 10" (6) 15" 15 15’
Min: Raar 25 25 25' 25' 25' 25'
[~ ‘ . Min.Building Frontage .- ... . .~ L L
Miri. Frontage (10). I wa [ e0% | 60% | 80% | 80% i - | C/IND: 60%
S v : ) Optional Plazas and Squares .~ . . ‘ ) L
Bulld:to-Line Exception | /A min. wiith o 20', and meb. depth of 25° - -
e \ Max. Stories/Height (8) . .
Max. Stories -~ - BIA 3 4 6 20 10 15
(Max. He _ght (8) N/A, 36° 48 72 240’ 120° 180'
[ ‘ - Other '
?ff‘;*(’;) Building '-I_'engt" N/A 300 300 300 300° - -
I[Ord .2006-004] [Ord. 2010-022] [Ord. 2015-031] [Ord. 2017-002] [Ord. 2017-007] [Ord. 2017-025] [Ord. 2019-005] [Ord. 2020
001] [Ord. 2021-006]
[Key:

Regulations, and Supplementary Standards_final LDRAB.docx

G:Westgate CRA\WULDC Amendments\21-01\Exh. B - CR-2021-0026 Art. 3, WCRAQ Use Regulations, Property Development

Notes:

Underlined indicates new text.
Stricken indicates text to be deleled. Siricken-anditalicized means text to be totally or partially relocated.
If being relocated destination is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated to: ].
Italicized indicates text to be relocated. Source is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated from: ].

.. A series of four bolded ellipses indicates language omitted to save space.

LDRAB Meeting

April 28, 2021

Page 6




EXHIBIT B

ARTICLE 3 — OVERLAYS AND ZONING DISTRICTS
WCRAO USE REGULATIONS, PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

REGULATIONS, AND SUPPLEMENTARY STANDARDS
CR-2021-0026
(Updated 04/16/2021)

- PDRs not specified in this Table shall be subject to the PDRs of the Iot’s zoning district.
C For commercial uses.
MU [For mixed uses.
Notes: . ‘ .
1 PDRs for Single Family dwellings in the NR Sub-area shall be in accordance with Table 3.B.14.F, WCRAQ Residential-Sub-
*  |area PDRs. [Ord. 2020-001]
2. Minimurm lot size per Table 3.D.1.A, Property Development Regulations shall not apply. [Ord. 2021-006]
3 Building coverage may be increased to 60 percent if all parking is provided curbside or in a parking structure. [Ord. 2006-004]
* |[Ord. 2020-001] [Ord. 2021-0086]
May be reduced to 50 feet if rear or cross access is provided. If cross access is provided, evidence of reciprocal agreement to
4. |allow vehicular cross access between the subject and adjacent property must be ebtained prior to Final DRO approval or|
issuance of a Building Permit, whichever occurs first. [Ord. 2021-006]
5 May be reduced to 75 feet for lots fronting Okeechobee Boulevard with vehicular access limited only to the rear or via cross
' access from the adjacent property. [Ord. 2021-006]
6 Side se;ti?cks may be reduced to zero in accordance with Art. 3.B.14.F.1.a, NRM, NG, and NC Side Setback Reduction. [Ord.
’ 2008-0
7 Mid-block separation a minimum of 20 feet in width is required at the first floor level for building length in exceeding 200 feet,
' and must be 50 feet or more from either end of the building. [Ord. 2006-004]
Minor increases in_the maximum height; allowed by this Table may be permitted subject to all of the standards of Art,
g 5.C.1.E.4.a-¢c and as exempted by Art. 3.D.1.E.4, Height Exceptions, and as defined by Art. 1, General Provisions. Buildings
! over 35 feet shall not be subject to the requirements of Art. 3.0.1.E.2, Multifamily, Non-Residential Districts, and PDDs. [Ord.
2010-022)
Buildings shall be articulated so that the longest side faces the front build-to-line, Where a parcel is located at the intersection
9. of two or more streets, at least one building shall be placed at a corner in accordance with Art. 3.B.14.F.2.b.2), R-O-
WiEasement Exception, and comply with the build-to-line for both streets. [Ord. 2015-031]
10 Minimum frontage shall only apply to the front build-to-line, and may be reduced in accordance with Art. 3. B 14.F.2.b.1)(a),
* [Minimum Building Frontage Exception. [Ord. 2015-031] [Ord. 2017-025]

Table 3.B.14.F- WCRAO Remdent;al-Sub-ama PDRs

I E ) Bouth® f' R
' A f" MQL Cottage m R e R
Residgnual Use Ul ot Estates” | Homies's. : Tov&nh,bu's" ' Multifamily | Multifamily
Typa Sl ?!’39'-9-.":“:.‘?‘:"Y . ‘Single - Single Unit. M“'“"'e Units| Y | 64 Units) | (25 Units)
crnol ‘ e “on a Single: ‘ AR .
o . ‘Eamily " | on'a Single. LotorSIte_(_) RV L .
1 ‘Alternative Lot _(_1 :
) Lot Dimensions -
Min. FrontagaILot , s s ) . )
width 50 25' 25 75 16 75 100
Min. Lot Depth 90’ 90" 70 100’ 50' 100' 100"
Max. Buildin
Coverage 9 50% 45% (9 5040% 80% 80% 40% {2) 40% (2)
: : Build-to-Line/Setbacks L
Tt T —_— s e - Build-to-Line — | Build-to-Line —| Buitd-to-Line ~
Front/Build-to-Line 25' min. 20" min 20" min. 10" min. 10-25' 10-25' 10-25°
o : 5' - End unit;
Min. Side (3) 5 3 253 g — Interior 5 10
. unit
[Min. Side Street 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 10" — End unit 10 10
(Min. Rear 10’ 10" 510 15’ 7.5 10" 25
(I Height/Stories

G:Westgate CRAWLDC Amendments\21 ONExh. B - CR-2021-0026 Art. 3, WCRAQO Use Regulations, Property Development

Regulations, and Supplementary Standards_final LDRAB.docx

Notes:

Undertined indicates new text.
Stricken indicates text to be deleted. Stricken-and-italicized means text to be totally or partiafly relocated.
If being relocated destination is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated to: .
ltalicized indicates text to be relocated. Source is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated from: ].

.. A series of four bolded ellipses indicates language omitted to save space.

LLDRAB Meeting

April 28, 2021

Page 7

(5



OO~ o AN

EXHIBIT B

ARTICLE 3 — OVERLAYS AND ZONING DISTRICTS
WCRAO USE REGULATIONS, PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

REGULATIONS, AND SUPPLEMENTARY STANDARDS
CR-2021-0026
{Updated 04/16/2021)

[Max. Stories 2 2 2 2 3 3 2 min. {6)
Max. Height (4) N/A N/A N/A N/A, 36 36 {5)
] Max 2 strs
) : _ Building Frontage

Min. Building NIA N/A N/A N/A 60% (7) 60% (7) 80% (7)
[[Frontage -

Ord. 2020-001]

Notes: ' o e - - : R : S :
1. gggej:ﬁp:)rrc::ided for herein, Townhouse developments shall comply with Table. 3.D.2.A, Townhouse Property Development

2, {Building coverage may be increased to 60 percent if all parking fs provided curbside or in a parking structure.
3.  |Side setbacks may be reduced to zero in accordance with Art. 3.B.14.F.1.a, NRM, NG, and NC Side Setback Reduction.
4

Minor increases in maximum height may be permitted subject to all of the standards of Art. 5.C.1.E.4.a-c and as exempted by
Art. 3.D.1.E.4, Height Exceptions, and as defined by Art. 1, General Provisions.

Maximum height of Multifamily projects of five units or more shall be In accordance with Maximum Stories and Height by Sub-
area in Table 3.B.14.F, WCRADO Non-Residential and Mixed Use Development Sub-area PDRs.

Multifamily developments with five units or more shall be required to be a minimum of two stories in the NC, UG, and UH Sub
areas.

Minimum building frontage of 80 percent is required for all Townhome and all Multifamily developments in the NC Sub-area.

Per Art. 4B 1.C.2, Cottage Home, the maximum size for Cottage Homes is limited to 1,000 square feet per dwelling unit.

Maximum building coverage may be allowed to increase by up to ten percent fo accommodate solid roof porches and/or patios.

Attached garages shall not exceed 15 percent of the maximum building coverage.

&

6.
7.
N
9.

2. Build-to-Line and Frontages

b. Minimum Building Frontage
1) The minimum building frontage shall be in accordance with the requirements of Table
3.B.14.F, WCRAO Non-Residential and Mixed Use Sub-area PDRs or Table 3.B.14.F,
WCRAO Residential-Sub-area PDRs. The portion of the structure required to meet the
building frontage shall be located on the build-to-line unless otherwise stated. [Ord.
2006-004] [Ord. 2010-022] [Ord. 2011-001] [Ord. 2015-031] [Ord. 2017-025] [Ord.
2020-001]

H. Density Bonus Programs
1. Density Bonus Pool

a. WCRA Recommendation
In accordance with Plan FLUE Sub-Objective 1.2.3 and Policy 1.2.3-b, any proposed
project that includes a request from the Density Bonus Pool must obtain a recommendation
of approval from the WCRA in accordance with the standards of Art. 3.B.14.D,
Development Review Procedures consistent with the provisions below: [Ord. 2021-006]

2) Meets the requirements of Table 3.B.14.E, WCRAQ Minimum/Maximum Residential
and Non-Residential Uses, Table 3.B.14.E, WCRAQ Sub-area Use Regulations, Table

G:\Westgate CRAWLDC Amendments\21-01\Exh. B - CR-2021-0026 Art. 3, WCRAO Use Regulations, Property Development
Regulations, and Supplementary Standards_final LDRAB.docx

Notes:

Underlined indicates new text.

Strieken indicates text to be deleted. Stdcken-and-talicized means text to be totally or partially relocated.
If being relocated destination is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated to: ].

ftalicized indicates text to be relocated. Source is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated from: ].

.... A series of four bolded ellipses indicates language omitted to save space.,

LDRAB Meeting April 28, 2021 Page 8

oA



—

WM —=

- OO~ [=)] w f

EXHIBIT B

ARTICLE 3 — OVERLAYS AND ZONING DISTRICTS
WCRAO USE REGULATIONS, PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

REGULATIONS, AND SUPPLEMENTARY STANDARDS
CR-2021-0026
(Updated 04/16/2021)

3.B.14.F, WCRAQ Non-Residential and Mixed Use Sub-area PDRs, and Table
3.B.14.F, WCRAO Residential-Sub-area PDRs, as applicable; [Ord. 2021-006]

Part 3. ULDC Art 3.B.14.G, Overlays and Zoning Districts, Overlays, WCRAO, Westgate
Community Redevelopment Area Overlay, Supplementary Standards (page 52 of 213,
Supplement 29), is hereby amended as follows:

Reason for amendments: [Westgate Community Redevelopment Agency]

1. Correct scrivener’s error to revert back to standard Code for minimum 1st floor height in the NR Sub-
area as the corresponding cells are currently left blank, therefore forcing the Code to remain silent.

2. Correct scrivener's error to revert back to standard Code for minimum number of floors in the NR,
NRM, and NG Sub-areas as the corresponding cells are currently left blank, therefore forcing the
Code to remain silent.

3. Correct scrivener's error to include the same minimum/maximum balcony depth and [ength
dimensions in the UG and UH Sub-areas as is required in the NR, NRM, NG, and NC Sub-areas, as
the corresponding cells are currently left blank, therefore forcing the Code to remain silent. Correcta
typographical error: "Mini” should read “Min.”

4. Amend reference fo Note #10 in Porches, Balconies, and Entryways Row to be #9. Note #10
references applicability of required Arcades and Galleries in the NC Sub-area when a lot is 100 feet
in width or less. Note #9 appropriately and accurately references applicability of Porches, Balconies,
and Entryways standards to residential development with five units or more.

CHAPTERB OVERLAYS

Section 14 WCRAQ, Westgate Community Redevelopment Area Overlay

G. Supplementary Standards
In addition to the requirements of Art. 5, Supplementary Standards, and Table 3.B.14.G, WCRAQO
Supplementary Standards by Sub-area, the following shall apply: [Ord. 2006-004]

Table 3.B.14.G — WCRAO Supplementary Standards by Sub-area
Sub-areas | NR ] NRM | NG | NC. .| us | UH | ul
‘ Minimum Enclosed Living Area : ) s
Single Family Dwelling Unit 1,000 sq. ft. | 1,000 sq. ft. - - - - -

Accessory Quarters 300 sq. ft. | 300sqg.ft. | 300 sq. ft. - - - -

' Fences and Walls ‘
Prohibited Materials (6) ] Chain link, wire mesh, barbed wire, wood basket weave, or corrugated metal panels
M Architectural Features ‘

G:'Westgate CRA\WULDC Amendments\21-01\Exh. B - CR-2021-0026 Art. 3, WCRAQO Use Regulations, Property Development
Regulations, and Supplementary Standards_final LDRAB.docx

Notes:

Underlined indicates new text.

Stricken indicates text to be deleted. Stricken and-talicized means text to be totally or partially relocated.
If being relocated destination is noted in bolded brackets [Reloeated to: ].

ftalicized indicates text to be relocated. Source is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated from: 1.

.... A series of four bolded sllipses indicates language omitted to save space.

LDRAB Meeting April 28, 2021 Page ¢

WS



EXHIBIT B

ARTICLE 3 — OVERLAYS AND ZONING DISTRICTS
WCRAO USE REGULATIONS, PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

REGULATIONS, AND SUPPLEMENTARY STANDARDS
CR-2021-0026
(Updated 04/16/2021)

: Required —
Arcades and Gallar]es (1) - - - Weslgate - - -
Avenue (10)

IMin Building Depth - 20 20' 20 o - 30
Min. 1st Floor Height - - - 12’ - - -
Min. Number'of Flonrs : - - - 2(2 - - -

S L o ] ~_ - Windows and Doors i
M!n Glazing of Frontage {3) || - [ @ ] 3 | (3) [ - - ] -
» Porches, Balconies, and Entryways (8)(109) . - o
Front Setback Max ] g & & _ . } B
Encroachment (7) = ‘

{(Min./Max. Porch Depth (4) 810 - - -
(Min./Max: Porch Length' (4) 8'/50% of building fagade - - -
Mln IMax; Balcony Depth (4) 33 -
' ‘ 6 /50% total of bunding fagade -

: ‘ Parking:"’ s BT
- Rear Rear Rear - - -
- Rear Rear Rear - - -
- Location of Accessory Quarters and Garagss:. . .
Back of rear fagade of primary } _ R B

. structures
S U b cLandseaping. sl o U T T 0T T
See Art. 3 B ‘I4 J, WCRAO Landscape Modlf cations allowing for reduction in Perlmeter and foundation p!antlng requnremenls

Min. Parvious Surface.. - [ 20% | 20% [ 20% | - | - | -
rKey : = —
Sub ect to the sugglementa[g standards of the lot's zoning dlstrlct

[Ord. 2006-004] [Ord 2009-040] [Ord. 2015-031] [Ord. 2017-002] [Ord. 2017- 007] [Ord. 2018-002] [Ord. 2020 -001]
Notes:

See Art. 3.B. '14 G 3.d, Arcades and Galleries, Figure 3.B.14.G, WCRAO Arcade and Gallery Standards [Ord. 2006- 004]
Required second floor shall meet minimum frontage and depth requirements, [Ord. 2006-004]

See Art. 3.B.14.G.3.c, Fenestration Details — Windows and Doors. Residential-only development in the NG and NRM Sub-
areas shall be exempt from Art. 3.b.14.G.3.c, Fenestration Details — Windows and Doors. [Ord. 2006-004] [Ord. 2020-061]
Excludes stoops. [Ord. 2006-004]

Access from the front or side may be permitied for lots with ne rear street frontage. [Ord. 2006-004]

Chain link fences may be installed for the following: [Ord. 2009-0401

Single Family residential use provided a confinuous native hedge is planted along the exterior side of the fence and
adequate room for maintenance is provided along the property lines adjacent to public R-O-W. The hedge shali be
maintained at the same height as the chain link fence. Black or green vinyl-coated chain link fence may be installed along
remaining perimeter property lines not adjacent to a public R-O-W; [Ord. 2009-040]

b. Non-residential uses within the Ul Sub-area if the chain link fence is black or green vinyt coated; or,

¢. When a landscape barrier is required pursuant to Art. 4.8.2.C.17.d, Accessory Uses — Green Market. [Ord. 2019-005]
The maximum encroachment for porches, balconies, and entryways located in NC Sub-area shall only apply to permitted
7. residential or hotel uses. These ground floor improvements shall not conflict with the placement of street trees. [Ord. 2011-
001]

Single Family dwellings and Cottage Homes — Single Unit on a Single Lot are not required to provide porches, balconies, and
8. entryways, but may elect to utilize setback exceptions provided encroachment complies with other applicable maximum|
dimensions. [Ord. 2015-031] [Ord. 2020-001]

| Shall not apply to residential uses, except Multifamily developments with five units or more, [Ord. 2015-031] [Ord. 2020-001]
G:\Westgate CRA\WULDC Amendmentsi21-01\Exh. B - CR-2021-0026 Art. 3, WCRAO Use Regulations, Property Development
Regulations, and Supplementary Standards_final LDRAB.docx

Notes:

Underlined indicates new text.

Stricken indicates text to be deleted. Siricken-and-falicized means text to be totally or partially relocated.
If heing relocated destination is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated to: ).

ftalicized indicates text to be relocated. Source is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated from: ].

.... A series of four bolded ellipses indicates language omitted to save space.

R I P

LDRAB Meeting April 28, 2021 Page 10

(olo



EXHIBIT B

ARTICLE 3 — OVERLAYS AND ZONING DISTRICTS
WCRAO USE REGULATIONS, PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

REGULATIONS, AND SUPPLEMENTARY STANDARDS
CR-2021-0026
(Updated 04/16/2021)

[10. TLots with 100 feet or less of frontage and residential development may be exempt. [Ord. 2017-002] [Ord. 2020-001] |

G:\Westgate CRAWLDC Amendmentsi21-01\Exh. B - CR-2021-0026 Art. 3, WCRAQO Use Regulations, Property Development
Regulations, and Supplementary Standards_final LDRAB.docx

Notes:

Underlined indicates new text.

Stricken indicates text to be deleted. Stricken-and-talicized means text to be totally or partially relocated.
If being relocated destination is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated to: |.

ltalicized indicates text to be relocated. Source is noted in bolded brackets [Relocated from: ].

.... A series of four bolded ellipses indicates language omitted to save space.

LDRAB Meeting April 28, 2021 Page 11

(o]



w O
— Z
m 1Tl
A W»n

Memo

To: Chairman Ron Daniels & Commissioners
From: Thomas J. Baird, General Counsel
Date: May 6, 2021

Subject: Danza Option Contract

Cc: Elizee Michel

Approximately, two business days prior to the Board’s April 12, 2021, meeting, | was advised by the Executive
Director that Danza was seeking to pre-lease commercial space to assist it with the financing of its potential
project. No details were provided with respect to this proposal. Subsequently, | learned that this pre-leasing
pertains to 5,000 square feet of the 1% floor commercial space; and that Danza is requesting that the WCRA
enter into a “Lease Option Agreement” (the Lease Option) with it.

Danza has proposed that the WCRA enter into the Lease Option to occupy 50% of the commercial center
which it contemplates as part of its mixed use project. The Lease Option proposed a 20 year Triple Net
Lease with two, 10-year renewal options. Upon execution of the Lease Option, the WCRA would make a
security deposit of $10,000.

The WCRA and Danza entered into an Option Agreement and the effective date of which was February 2,
2021. Pursuant to the Option Agreement, Danza may exercise the option to purchase the WCRA property
anytime up to February 24, 2022. Thirty days prior to that date, Danza can request to extend the option
period for an additional 12 months. Prior {0 exercising the option, Danza must:

1. Demonstrate to the reasonable satisfaction of the WCRA that it has “cash” in hand sufficient fc acquire
and redevelop the property, or provide WCRA with proof of a financing commitment from one or more
institutional lenders or other financial sources and;

2. Obtain all approvals form PBC, including amendments to the Comprehensive Plan and zoning district,
including 5,000 s.f. of commercial space on the ground floor.

The decisions of whether to enter info the Lease Option is certainly within the purview of the Board. However,
the following should be taken into consideration. The proposed mixed use project totals 15,000 ~ 60,000
square feet; 5,000 of which is to be ground floor commercial. It is not clear that there would be any other
“‘commercial” uses developed as part of Danza’s mixed use project. While the CRA offices could qualify as
a “commercial” use, to the extent it is an office use, this does not seem to be consistent with the mixed use
concept set forth in the WCRA's Master Plan.

This Lease Option proposal precedes the provision in the Option Agreement that Danza obtain all approvals
from the county. As set forth in the Option Agreement, one of the approvals to be obtained from the County
is for 5,000 s. f. of commercial space on the ground floor. Aside from the fact that all of the commercial space
would potentially have no taxable value, the County, may or may not classify the WCRA offices as a
‘commercial use.”

N -

(8



May 6, 2021
Page 2

Based upon what | know, it is not clear whether the only pre-leasing being proposed by Danza is it's proposal
for the WCRA to lease 1% floor commercial space in its proposed project. This should be clarified so that the
WCRA Board understands exactly what is being prosed. [n addition, if the Board is inclide to pre-lease space
to Danza, then | would request that the Board direct my real estate partner to review the proposed Lease
Option and provide the Board with comments and identify any concerns before the Board takes action with
respect to it.

P:ADOCS\26504\00001\MEM\22M7874.DOCX



